
KIWANIS 
CLUB OF OTTAWA 

Music & Entertaintnent 

2002-2003 
Standing 
Committees 

-



Index to Reports in the 2002-2003 Annual Report 

The President's Report 
Minutes of Annual General Meeting - Jan 24/03 
Semi-Annual Business Meeting - July 18/03 
Aktion Club 
Bon Appetit Silent Auction 
Cadet Committee 

- Air Cadets 
- Governor General's Foot Guards 

Circle K 
Dream of a Lifetime 
Duck Race 
Golf Tournament 
Interclub, Sports and Social 
Key Club 
Legacy For Life 
Medical Foundation 
Membership 
Music/Entertainment 
Music Festival 
Partners In Caring 
Pass The Torch Campaign 
Programme / Public Relations 
Seniors Citizens / Hands-On 
Spiritual Aims 
Strategic Planning 
Ways & Means 
Young Children - Priority One 
Youth & Community Services 

Financial Statements for Kiwanis 
Financial Statements for Kiwanis Medical Foundation 
Proposed Budgets 

1-4 
5-6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15-16 
17-18 
19-20 
21 
22-23 
24-25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30-31 
32-33 
34 
35-36 
37 
38 
39 

Yellow Sheets 
Yellow Sheets 
Green Sheets 



.. 
-:;;;;;; 

-:;;. 

--

::;;; 

__ 

= 

KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 

PRESIDENT 
Rick Barrigar 

IMMEDIATE PAST-PRESIDENT 
Richard Munro 

PRESIDENT-ELECT 
Janet Dodds 

VICE-PRESIDENTS 
David Daubney 
Derek Finley 

HONORARY SECRETARY 
Harold Feder 

HONORARY TREASURER 
Bill Gosewitz 

DIRECTORS 
Sam Bhargava 
Myrna Beattie 
Waiter Boyce 
Lynda Campbell 
Ross Christensen 
Neil McDonald 
Michel Podeszfinski 
Mike St.Louis 
Chris Thompson 

President's Report 2002-03 2002 - 2003 

The saying "All good things must come to an end", most certainly has relevance for 
me today. This Presidential year, arguably the most enjoyable of my life, has 
concluded. When I spoke to you at last September's Turnover, I was looking 
forward to serving you, and promised to do so, to the best of my abilities. I believe 
that I've kept that promise. 

To say that I've enjoyed myself would be a considerable understatement. Perhaps 
this may sound heretical, but I am going to miss the job of President and all the work 
that it entails. 

That's because I found it fun, rather than work, in the normal sense. I'll miss 
enjoying the incredible respect that this office commands outside this club, and you 
can only imagine it, unless you've experienced it. I guess that comes from 85 years 
of successful service to the Ottawa community. Therefore, lowe a debt of gratitude 
to members, past and current, and to my predecessors as President. 

This Club year has been a reasonably successful one. From a membership 
perspective, we have kept our membership at the same level - about 215 - in a 
difficult market. Our budget for the fiscal year had suggested that we would have a 
significant deficit, but with judicious planning and more controls on expenses, we 
are expecting to show a considerable improvement. Perhaps more importantly, our 
financial forecasts have resulted in some very worthwhile fundraising ideas coming 
forth from our membership. This augurs well for President David Daubney's year, 
and, indeed, for several years in the future. 

One of my goals was to re-attach the umbilical cords to some of our other Kiwanis 
clubs in Divisions 12 and 13, especially those clubs sponsored by this club. I 
attended many of their meetings and events, many of them Interclubs, but in all 
cases, acting as your Ambassador, to reassure them that we cared about their 
welfare. 

On your behalf, I have now attended four International Conventions in Denver, 
Taipei, New Orleans and Indianapolis. 

I've attended three District Conventions, in Mississauga, Ottawa and Sydney, all of 
this thanks to you. There is no doubt that these activities have contributed 
significantly to my being elected to the position of Lt. Governor, Division 12, for the 
year 2004-2005. This, too, should be a terrific Kiwanis experience. 

- ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 
"SERVING THE CHILDREN OF THE WORLD" Mrs. Rita Harper 
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In many ways, I feel blessed for the wonderful time I've had. 

Blessed with the support shown by every member. Blessed to have had a responsible 
and caring Board of Directors, who made some difficult decisions, not the least of 
which, implementing our Strategic Plan and all the changes that entails. 

Blessed to have people like Rita and Mike in our Kiwanis office. 
Blessed to have great friends, such as EarIe Maguire, Bob Pentland and Tom Burns, 
here with me today, two of them as they were last September at Turnover. Thanks 
guys. 

Blessed to be enjoying my best business year in eight years with Progestic 
International. 

Blessed to have enjoyed a lot of laughs, many at my expense. 

But especially blessed to be part of an international organization that believes in, and 
delivers on, the motto "Serving the Children of the W orId". 

To Past President Richard Munro, a special thank you for providing the guidance 
and support to allow me to enjoy this amazing year. 

To President Designate David Daubney, I give assurance that I will endeavour, as 
Immediate Past President, to be equally supportive in, what I'm sure, will be a very 
interesting 12 months. Fasten your seat belt, David. You're in for quite a ride. 

I have jokingly commented on several occasions that you don't have to be smart to 
be a Kiwanian, nor is intelligence a requirement to be President. When you are 
surrounded by quality people doing quality things, as I have been, you are almost 
guaranteed to enjoy success. 

From the bottom of my heart, I want to thank every member of this great club for the 
opportunity to serve you as your 85th President. 

Yours in Kiwanis, 

Rick Barrigar, President 2002-03 
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Annual General Meeting of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 
For the fiscal year October 1, 2001 - September 30, 2002 

Chateau Laurier Hotel- Friday, January 24, 2003 

In Attendance: 

Rick Barrigar David Kardish 
Myrna Beattie Don Keyes 
Sam Bhargava Bob Litdemore 
I<en Bickley Jan Mansfield 
Don Blakslee Neil McDonald 
John Booth Matt McGrath 
Walter Boyce Doug McGregor 
Bruce Brooks Ross McIntyre 
Vincent Calzonetti Murray McI<eage 
Allan Casdedine Hassa Mirchandani 
Peter Charboneau Art Moody 
Ross Christensen John Moor 
Ev Colton Steve Moore 
Eddy Cook Bill More 
Eric Cosgrove Les Morin 
Bill Cowie Richard Munro 
Rocco D'Angelo Ana Nesic 
David Daubney John O'Neil 
Bruno Di Chiara Ted Parsons 
Martin Diegel Barb Perrin 
Janet Dodds George Perrin 
Donna Drummond Michel Podeszfinski 
David Fair Sandra Presley 
Sheri Farahani Tom Pullen 
Harold J. Feder Richard Seguin 
Dominic Ferrarotto Bill Siekierski 
Victor Ferreira Stephen Smye 
Derek Finley Tom Spence 
Robert Fisher Michael St. Louis 
Jane Flain Robert St. Louis 
Patrick Flain Lee Storm 
Jack Gordon Stephen Tanner 
Bill Gosewitz Shirley Tomblin 
Ross Hadwen Glen Vaillancourt 
Larry Haffner Bob Vergette 
Victor Hanna Barry Weatherdon 
Bill Harsh Stephen Weeks 
Frank Hegyi Howard Whittaker 
Cliff Hollman I<ent Wilkinson 
Jacquelin Holzman Doug Wilson 
James Johnson 



ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING for our Fiscal year 2001-2002 
January 24, 2003 

President Rick Barrigar declared this to be the Annual General Meeting of the Kiwanis Club of . 
Ottawa and advised that Past District Governor Frank Hegyi would be acting as Parliamentarian 
for the meeting. He then called on Past President Richard Munro to preside over this portion of the 
meeting. 

Past President Richard Munro called for a motion to adopt the Report of the Standing Committees. It 
was MOVED by Peter Charboneau and seconded by Bob Vergette, that the Report be approved. 

CARRIED 

Richard then called for a motion to approve the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Club, 
held March 1102 which are found on pages 1 to 2, in the 2001-2002 Annual Report. It was MOVED 
by Lome Usher and seconded by Barry Weatherdon that the Minutes be approved, with the inclusion of 
Bob Vergette's name on the attendance. CARRIED 

Richard then called for a motion to approve the Minutes of the Semi-Annual Business Meeting and 
Round Two, held on July 12 and July 26, 2002, which are found on pages 4 to 8, in the 2001-2002 
Annual Report. It was MOVED by Glen Vaillancourt and seconded by Tom Pullen that the Minutes be 
approved. CARRIED 

Richard Munro called on Past Honorary Treasurer Bruce Brooks to present the 2001-2002 Auditor's 
Report for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa, Incorporated. 

Bruce Brooks moved that the Auditor's Report found on page 47 of the 2001-2002 Annual Report, be 
adopted. It was seconded by Ross Hadwen. CARRIED 

Bruce explained some of the items on the Financial Statements including $22,486 in payroll expenses 
which were a result of the reorganization in the office, and $12,836 which was for promotion of the 
EC&C District Convention planned for Ottawa and is not recoverable. He also pointed out that we 
received revenue of approximately $40,000 from the Ontario Government for PST that we are not 
entitled to keep and must return. 

He briefly reviewed the Fundraising Schedule and Administrative Expenses, noting the Bad Debts 
and unexpected Salary expenses. Matt McGrath questioned the bad debt expense and asked what 
methods we are taking to collect. Richard Munro explained that the Allowance for Bad Debt of 
$13,892 was an accumulation of previous year's charges for prepaid luncheons that were not eaten, and 
that we did not pay for them. He stressed that this was not an actual expense to our club and that the 
office now has a good system set up for collections on a timely basis. 

Matt noted that we have a raffle and the members donate the items, but he questioned the Executive 
decision to spend money to buy hockey tickets. Rick Barrigar explained that we support the Ottawa 
Senators and the Partners In Caring Committee felt it was an excellent way for us to support the 
Hockey Club and support our sponsored youth at the same time. Tom Pullen explained that because of 
our association with the Senators, our club has raised thousands of dollars through our fundraisers. 



Bruce Brooks MOVED that the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated 
Statement of Operations, be adopted. This was seconded by Art Moody. CARRIED 

Bruce Brooks presented the 2001-2002 Auditor's Report and the Financial Statements for the Kiwanis 
Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation. They were MOVED by Bruce and seconded by Allan 
Castledine. CARRIED 
Bruce noted interest revenue of $35,845 earned for the year, thanks to Allan Castledine and Nesbitt 
Burns. 

Richard Munro expressed a vote of thanks to KPMG who has once again copied, collated, and stapled 
our Annual Reports, at no charge. 
Richard Munro turned the meeting back to President Rick Barrigar. 

President Rick called on Honorary Treasurer Bill Gosewitz to present the Proposed Budgets for our 
2002-03 year. 
The Proposed Budgets for 2002-03 were MOVED by Bill Gosewitz and seconded by Les Morin. 

CARRIED 

Bill Gosewitz MOVED that the club approve an increase in the Club Membership Dues in 2002-03 of 
up to $20, for annual dues of $290, ONLY IF NECESSARY, since notice of one year must be given for 
an increase in Dues. Bill noted that the last increase in Membership Dues was for $10 in 1998 to 
$270. This was seconded by Eddy Cook. CARRIED 
Bill explained that there has been an increase of .50 on our Luncheon Fees from the Chateau Laurier, 
effective January 1, 2003, which has not be passed on to our members. 

Bill explained that the Board has adjusted our Proposed Budgets from the original amount of ($92,317) 
to show the proposed income of $25,000 from the President's Ball in April 2003 as staying with our 
club, and $17,500 proceeds of the Partners In Caring being passed to our internal YCPO projects. 

Bill made a plea to the members to put their thinking caps on as development of new fundraisers is 
vital for our club. He spoke of the Membership Dues which don't cover of our administrative costs. 
He also explained that we will get a rent increase of 50% over the next 5 years, however, we are still 
paying less than market value. 

Bill explained that it was agreed by the Board of Directors that we start our Budgeting Process in June 
to have it completed by August, with the help of the outgoing Committee Chairs. This would allow 
the Board to see the requirements of the upcoming year to allow them to determine if an increase in our 
Club Membership Dues would be necessary for October. IT WAS MOVED by Bill Gosewitz and 
seconded by David Fair, that the Budget process begins in June. CARRIED 

President Rick asked for a motion to approve KPMG as our Club Auditors for the General, 
Community Services, and Medical Foundation Accounts for the year 2002-2003. IT WAS MOVED 
by Frank Hegyi and seconded by Jane Flain. CARRIED 

President Rick Barrigar thanked Bruce Brooks and Bill Gosewitz for their presentations. He also 
thanked Rita Harper and Joyce Stewart, who ensured the Audit was completed in a timely fashion and 
the Annual Reports were distributed to our members. 
"Most importantly, thank you to all the members here today, it shows your interest, obligation and 
dedication as a member of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa". 



Question and Answer Period: 
-. Lome Usher asked about the Duck Race proceeds. Bill explained that the Proposed Revenue of the 

Duck Race, $45,000, is shown as a Recovery to our club. It was discussed that the $31,000 for our 
support of Dream of a Lifetime for 2002, has already been received, however, it may change for 2003. 
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Kent Wilkinson suggested we raise the cost of the weekly raffle tickets to $1, as well as increasing the 
cost of the Fines from the President. 
Bob Vergette explained that the Cadets won't need as much budget since there is a Parents Committee 
also raising funds for the Cadets. 

Peter Charboneau asked if we had a contingency plan should be not meet our revenues. Bill explained 
that the Board will be keeping a close eye on the Budget vs the Actuals and will adjust their expenses 
where possible to keep within our budget. He explained that a deficit budget will affect our Surplus, 
and that we must look at new fundraisers, as well as reviewing the costs to operate the club. 

Ross McIntyre asked who is responsible for coming up with new fundraisers. Bill explained that the 
Ways and Means Committee is tasked with that responsibility and that all members are encouraged to 
provide their suggestions. Bill stressed that there are administrative costs to running our fundraisers 
and the Board will be looking a percentage transfer for each fundraiser. 

Murray McKeage spoke on behalf of the Membership Committee's suggestion that the Senior members 
prepay their luncheons at 12 per year, as it the requirement for Senior attendance. They would also like 
to see more Seniors at our luncheon meetings which would be beneficial to newer members who could 
share in their history and get new ideas. 

Eddy Cook asked what our comfort zone would be in the Surplus Account. He suggested that the 
Board look at ways to cut back on our expenses in addition to raising more funds. Bill agreed that this 
process has already begun. 

Don Blakslee indicated that he feels the President's Ball should not be a fundraiser and should be an 
event where all members are able to attend at no cost. Rick explained that was considered, however, 
we also want to raise funds if possible. 

Rick Barrigar explained that we have been keeping a tight lid on our spending and have had large 
requests for assistance from: St. Vincent's Hospital $75,000, Ottawa Boys Club $150,000, Salvation 
Army $20,000 for 5 years, Ottawa Eye Institute $80,000, and The Ottawa Hospital $150,000 for 5 
years. These requests were reluctantly turned down by the Ways & Means Committee, and agreed to 
by the Board of Directors, due to the restraints on our finances. 

Rick spoke on the YCPO Literacy Project which is still in its infancy, and highlighted its objectives 
including to raise literacy in the Ottawa area, participation and partnership with 200 schools, provide 
grants to participating schools, provide an opportunity to raise funds and to provide recognition for 
Kiwanis. Rick encouraged all members to support the Board of Directors and the YCPO Committee 
in this exciting endeavor. 

Kent thanked the Board of Directors for their continued attention and support of the club and the 
challenges they meet every year. The meeting was adjourned by Kent Wilkinson 



Semi-Annual Business Meeting 
July 18/03, Chateau Laurier, Adam Room 

President Rick Barrigar gave an up-to-date report on our Membership, noting that we are 
holding our own at 215 members, which is remarkable, he stressed, as in many clubs, 
membership numbers are declining rapidly. 

He has made a conscious effort to be a good ambassador for our club, by attending a large 
number of interclubs, especially with our sponsored Kiwanis clubs. He is also attending a 
variety of organizational functions, which relate to our heritage, such as Boys and Girls Club, 
the Salvation Army and Camp Banting. 

Rick then called on Albert Monsour, Honorary Treasurer for 2003-04, to give a report on the 
Financial Statements, in the absence of Bill Gosewitz, our current Honorary Treasurer. 

Albert reported on our Proposed Budgets, highlighting the challenges that have arisen. The 
President's Ball did not proceed resulting in a reduction of our projected revenue of $25,000 
and the Bon Appetit Silent Auction raised $12,000 less than projected. These items resulted 
in the Board's decision to cut costs and all Committees have been asked to discontinue 
spending for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

He mentioned that there will be an increase in Club Dues from Kiwanis International by $15 
US per person. Thus, there will be an increase in our own Membership Dues to $290 from 
$270 effective October 1, 2003. This implements our Dues increase that was approved at our 
Annual General Meeting in January 2003. Unfortunately, with the International dues increase 
- technically this increase does not assist our club costs, it merely covers the cost of the 
increase for International. 

Albert also noted that there will be a Luncheon increase by the Fairmont Chateau Laurier from 
$18.95 to $19.95 effective October 1, 2003. With taxes and gratuity this amounts to $25.94. 
This will be passed on to our Senior Members and guests who will be required to pay $26.00 at 
the door, an increase of $1. Active Members will be required to Prepay $19.00, an increase of 
$1. The last increase to our members was in January 2001 from $16 to $17 (when the meal 
cost was $18.00 ++ 
$23.40). 

Albert reminded the members that all Committee Chairs should now be preparing a Proposed 
Budget for next year's Committee, with the assistance of next year's Committee Chair. These 
are due in the office by end of July. 

5 



Semi-Annual Business Meeting, Page 2 

Rick Barrigar explained that the Dream of a Lifetime is being renegotiated with our Club which 
is one of the reasons we must work on our Budget process now. Will Thompson asked about 
our relationship with CHEO on the Duck Race. Rick explained that we have a good 
relationship with CHEO and we are confident that this will continue, as well, that a contract for 
the Duck Race is in place. 

Wayne French asked if we incurred any costs for the President's Ball. Rick explained that the 
Board has assumed the costs of approximately $3,100 which is for the band, since we did sign a 
contract and they would be out of pocket. 

Larry Haffner asked the Dues increase from Kiwanis International. Rick explained this is 
beyond our control. Kathleen Holst asked if there was any way around the increase. Rick 
stressed that Kiwanis International is also having financial challenges and all clubs will feel 
this increase. 

Frank Hegyi suggested the Board consider charging a 20% Admin Fee to all fundraisers, which 
would be transferred to the General Account to cover our costs. This will be looked at by the 
Board of Directors for 2003-04 

Strategic Planning Update 

President-Elect David Daubney reported on the 3 Steering Committees being implemented for 
the new year: Operations, Fundraising, and Community Services. These Steering 
Committees will combine all the committees in their appropriate section, and the Chairs will be 
Derek Finley, Neil McDonald, and Sam Bhargava, respectively. 

David reported that the new year will see some changes: Music/Entertainment and Music 
Festival will be merged, and Lorne Usher will be Chair; Passing the Torch Committee will no 
longer exist, however, there is still work to be done, and it will be done under the umbrella of 
the Cadets Committee. 

David stressed that we are in need of fundraisers for each quarter and are looking at some 
suggestions by the members. Members are encouraged to pass their ideas to Tom Beveridge, 
Chair of the Ways and Means Committee for next year. 

He reiterated that the K. International Dues increase took away our chance for a balanced 
budget. We will be reviewing our Administrative costs as well as identifying where our 
fundraising monies will be going. 



--------

Committee Reports 

2002-2003 



AKtion Club Annual Report 2002-03 

To: The President, the Board of Directors, and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa 

The Ottawa-Carleton AKtion Club will have completed their fourth year on the 31 
October 2003. 

Many enjoyable meetings were held every second Tuesday at the Royal Canadian Legion 
at 330 Kent Street. We are very fortunate to have the use of their Conference Room at no 
charge. Following are details of the highlights of the past year. 

* A Christmas Party was held in December 2002, attended by approximately 75 AKtion 
Club members. The party was co-sponsored by the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa and 
OCAPDD. 

* The guest speaker at two different meetings was the Honourable John Baird and were 
highly successful. Mr. Baird was quite impressed and promised to return again when 
time permits. 

* Many different groups including Ray's Little Reptiles, Ottawa Police Dogs, Maria 
Hawkins and her Band, and many other groups and individuals supplied excellent 
entertainment at no charge. 

* A summer picnic was held at Vincent Massey Park sponsored by the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa and OCAPDD. Over 75 AKtion Club members attended, and an enjoyable 
afternoon concluded by 4:00pm. 

* During the month of April, the President, Vice-President and Secretary of the AKtion 
Club attended a meeting with the North Bay Chapter. Their Executive then came to our 
meeting in Ottawa. Both meetings were very informative and enjoyed by all concerned. 

There were many other highlights throughout the year and the members enjoyed all the 
meals, entertainment and other events throughout the year. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Harold Moore 
Chair 
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Bon Appetit! Ottawa Silent Auction 2002-03 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Our 5th year of participating in this major fundraiser occurred on Tuesday, May 6, 2003, at the 
Aberdeen Pavilion of Lansdowne Park. The event proved successful raising nearly $38,000.00, 
with net proceeds of $30,958.04, in one evening. 

This year's event also proved as challenging as ever with over 50% of the items being donated in 
the last two weeks leading up to the event. Our committee was small but dedicated, as it met the 
challenge of the late donations and decreasing community tolerance for solicitation of auction 
items in Ottawa. This challenge was also met with a huge level of support from members of the 
Club itself. In particular, we received a great level of support from our members in the 
hospitality and travel industry, which made the auction special this year for its offering of 
interesting certificates and packages. Another positive development this year was the addition of 
point of sale machines in the cash office. We found that this small change ensured immediate, 
timely collection of the funds, as well as facilitated record keeping. Our challenge in years to 
come will continue to be the solicitation of high return items, the securing of these items more in 
advance of the event itself, and the constant effort to improve upon procedures from the year 
before. 

Special thanks need to be offered not only to our very enthusiastic committee but also those 
outside our committee who ensured that the evening would be a success. In particular, the event 
could not have functioned without the commendable efforts of other Kiwanians, such as Shirley 
Tomblin, Mike St. Louis, Derek Finley, Ross Christensen, Les Morin, Lynda Campbell, Alison 
Poirier, Bruno DiChiara, Susan Burgess and Rita Harper. Also, special thanks to Lana Tanner, 
Megan Paquette and the many Staples' Associates who pitched in the night of the event to help 
with set up, security and tear down. 

Finally, I would like to give a special thanks to my co-chair Stephen Tanner, who not only 
worked tirelessly on this event, but who also sponsored me into the Kiwanis Club and convinced 
me to join the Bon Appetit committee in my first year. We both look forward to handing over 
the reigns to Phil Rossy and Bruno DiChara next year. I am particularly looking forward to 
continuing to participate in this great fundraiser as the Board Director on the committee. 

Committee Members: 
Director: Bill Gosewitz 
Tom Beveridge 
Kim Ellard 
Bob Fisher 

Respectfull y submitted, 

Sheri Farahani 
Stephen Tanner 
Co-Chairs 

Steve Georgopoulos 
Kevin Keohane 
Mark Max 
Lee Storm 

Bob St. Louis 
Phil Rossy 
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Cadet Committee Annual Report 2002-2003 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

To: President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This past year was a very busy year for the 211 Air Cadet Squadron, as well as the Governor 
General's Foot Guards. 

There were several joint ventures such as the Remembrance Day Luncheon, Cadet Luncheon, 
Cadets Caring For Canada, and Clean Up Day at Connaught Ranges, followed by sports 
participation. 

Major Robert Barrette continues to be the driving force behind the Cadets. The Parents 
Committee continues to be a major fundraiser under the leadership of Steve Usher and Marilyn 
Fortin. 

Captain Dave Burniston was a great addition to the 211 Squadron, who had a great year. A 
Parents Committee was formed and we know they will be successful in their future fundraising. 

A special thanks to both Buck Madden and Mike Flint for chairing their respective committees. 

The Army Cadets were once again recognized as the top Army Cadet unit in Ontario "Up the 
Guards" 

The club can be proud of the young men and women who serve in the Cadet Corps. 

submitted, 

Chair 
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Cadets - 211 Air Cadet Squadron 2002-03 

To: The President, Board of Directors and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This past year continues to see a marked improvement in the squadron, its leadership and 
the activities they are engaged in. Some real positive changes have been made and the 
effects are now being seen. Recruiting is up over 100 cadets (from under 60 two years 
ago) and retention is excellent. The Commanding Officer, Dave Burniston, remains with 
the squadron and has secured a solid, competent staff behind him. 

The committee supporting the squadron has grown this year as well. A few new faces are 
on the committee adding new ideas and fresh enthusiasm as well as many of the 
committee that has been around for years. 

The Parent Support Group is working well with the squadron and the committee. Still led 
by Mrs. Jaquie Meelker, her group has expanded its role and the number of parents taking 
part. The Parent Support Group is also alleviating some of the financial burden from the 
Kiwanis Club of Ottawa on an ever-increasing level. 

The activities of the squadron over the past year are as follows: 

October 2002 
November 2002 

December 2002 
February 2003 
March 2003 

May 2003 

June 2003 
September 2003 
October 2003 
November 2003 

December 2003 

Fly Day, Poppy Sales 
Gliding, Remembrance Luncheon, Bush Weekend, First Aid, Tag 
Day, Remembrance Day 
Change of Command, Christmas Dinner 
Curling Competition 
Bowling Competition, Public Speaking Competition, Swim 
Competition 
Kiwanis Luncheon, Battle of the Atlantic, Annual Inspection, Bush 
Weekend, Mess Dinner 
Cadets Caring for Canada Day, Tag Day 
Battle of Britain, Instructor Training, Gliding 
Gliding, Tag Day, Bush Weekend 
Poppy Sales, Remembrance Day, Remembrance Luncheon, First 
Aid 
Kiwanis Trivia Night, Christmas Dinner 

Numerous cadets attended summer camps, including three cadets completing their glider 
and power pilot's license. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mike Flint 
211 Air Cadet Committee Vice-Chair 

Committee Members 
Bob Vergette, Cadet Committee Chair 
Sam Bhargava, Vice President Mike St. Louis, Director Guy Milne, Controller 

Ken Miller Val Wilkins Patrick McGarry 
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Cadets - Governor General's Foot Guards 2002-03 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Guards Cadets continued to lead the province by winning the Colonel Cleary Award 
as the best army cadet corps in Ontario for the third straight year! This is a result of the 
fine leadership provided by the commanding officer Major Robert Barrette. Strong 
leadership was also provided by Steve Usher and the parents committee, who raised over 
$4,000 for the cadets. The award for best cadets also comes with a cheque for $1,000. 
Financial assistance was also provided by the Royal Canadian Legions - the 
Montgomery, Kanata and Strathcona branches. Also providing financial assistance were 
The Mcguire Agency, Air Associates and the Guards Foundation. Kiwanis Club of 
Sage's Tom Moore was again the treasurer and performed a yeoman's job reconciling the 
funding from the different sources. 

The strength of the cadets has increased from 95 last year to 120 this year and at the time 
of writing are up to 150. Training was at a top level this year with five weekend exercises 
and many adventure training days of abseiling, canoeing and navigation included in the 
programme. In February, they braved minus 38C during winter exercise "True 
Canadian" overnight adventure. Other events and activities were: 

• Passing the Torch ceremony at city hall 
• National remembrance Day parade at the Cenotaph 
• Miss Canada pageant 
• Raising funds for the MS 1 7 km walk 
• Providing security at the Santa Claus parade 
• Assisting at the Perley-Rideau Veterans home 
• Remembrance ceremonies at the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa and the Montgomery 

legion 
• Biathlon teams placed well in their competitions in the Province 
• MWO She-ming Lau-Chapdelaine was the top cadet in Ontario, a first for our 

corps! 
• Annual Inspection and Review on May 28 
• 30 cadets participated in an exchange visit with a cadet corps in St. John's NFLD 

As a club, we can be proud that we are helping to turn out strong and proud young men 
and women who are willing to give back to their community. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Buck Madden, Vice Chair 
Committee Members: 
Tom Moore from the Kiwanis Club of Sage 
Martin Diegel Janet Dodds Mike St Louis 
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Circle K Annual Report 2002-2003 

To: The President and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of01tawa 

Our Circle K membership continues to provide a source of pride and a valued link to our youth 
community. Both the Ottawa University and Carleton University clubs continue to struggle with 
recruitment; what they lack in quantity they overcome with quality. The Circle K Clubs are fragile and 
precious. Their fragility arises out of their own leadership and their low membership numbers. They are 
precious because they unknowingly carry the ambitions of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa on their slender 
young shoulders. 

Poor Circle K Club leadership will result in a significant loss of interest by the membership. The loss 
becomes two-fold as word-of-mouth is still our greatest recruitment tool and, as such, is a double-edged 
sword. The Committee, as a group and as individuals, each year tries to assess the balance between 
providing support and giving direction. The focus this year has been to provide consistent support and to 
refocus the Clubs on recruitment through events. If good creative events can become the constants then 
the leadership won't be as critical to the success or failure of a Club. Until the Clubs become more stable, 
we, as a Committee, should continue to actively encourage recruitment and club building events as the 
focus for the Clubs. 

Some solid activities have become established which will become annual core events for the Circle K 
Clubs to build on. (Leaf raking, Halloween Food Drive, Trivia Night, Duck Race, Program Day, Year-
End Social). 

Past President Ian Hendry ably led a training workshop for the membership of both clubs to assist the 
clubs in establishing goals, a plan of action, and to consider succession planning. 

President Rick Barrigar was the keynote speaker for the Circle K luncheon and was very well received by 
the Circle K clubs and our own membership, as he highlighted the importance of our sponsored youth 
programs through some very personal insights from his own experiences. 

The long sought after goal of the Committee to have some representation at the District Convention was 
finally achieved this year. Mihkael Emery, a past president of the Carleton University Club, attended 
Indianapolis, Indiana, in June. There are lessons to be learned from the successful clubs in the United 
States and footsteps to follow in, to achieve the kinds of success we look to for our clubs. The support is 
there, we have yet to fully leverage that support. 

It has been a pleasure and an honour serving as Chair of the Circle K Club. The individuals on the 
committee who give of themselves so willingly are an inspiration, a source of great pride for all of us, and 
a testament to the dedication of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa to our sponsored youth. 

The dedicated members of the Circle K Committee: 
Vice-Chair: Val Wilkins 
Vice-President: Janet Dodds 
Director: Harold Feder 
Rick Barrigar: President 

12. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Glen Vaillancourt, Chair 

Guy Bourbonniere 
Ian Hendry 
Frank Hegyi 
Howard Lithwick 
Steve Moore 
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Dream of a Lifetime 2002 - 2003 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa provided volunteers and sold tickets for the CHEO 2002-
2003 Dream of a Lifetime Lottery. Kiwanis committed to sell 800 tickets and we 
exceeded our goal. 

Kiwanis keeps the proceeds of ticket sales on the fist 800 tickets sold and in return 
purchases a vehicle for one of the prizes. The net benefit to Kiwanis is $31,000. 

CHEO raised concerns of the transparency of this transaction as the purchaser of a ticket 
sold through Kiwanis is led to believe that the proceeds are going to CHEO, when in fact 
they remain with Kiwanis. 

A priority was placed on the control of tickets. There was a concern in the past for 
unaccounted tickets. Lee Storm was appointed the controller and provided weekly 
updates to CHEO of ticket numbers sold. It was decided that tickets would only be sold 
at the Dream Home and booklets of tickets would not be signed out to Kiwanis members 
for sale to their friends and business associates. As a result ticket accountability was 
maintained. 

Kiwanis was responsible for staffing the Dream Home for all week-end hours, this 
required four shifts of two people per shift. Bruno Di Chiara assumed responsibility for 
the scheduling in the home. The volume of traffic in the home was very high, often 
exceeding 2000 visitors in one day. 

The future of Kiwanis involvement in the Dream Lottery was in question. CHEO felt 
that the lack of transparency of Kiwanis ticket sales was an issue. As our role was 
reduced to staffing and selling tickets in the Dream Home, our efforts could be replaced 
by the hiring of ticket sellers, thus increasing the proceeds to CHEO by $80,000. This 
issue was turned over to the club's executive. 

Committee Members 
Vice President David Daubney 
Director Harold Feder 
Vice Chairs Lee Storm, Bruno Di Chiara 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dawn Morewood, Chair 

Vic Reed 
Doug Wilson 
Jim Bowie 
Keith McGruer 
Al Monsour 
Kevin Keohane 



Duck Race Committee - 2002-03 

To: The President and Melnbers of the Kiwanis Club of Otta\va 

The Duck Race Conlmittee, with the CHEO Foundation and a host of Khvanis and cOlnmunity 
partners, is responsible for the annual Kiwanis Duck Race for Tiny Hemis at CHEO. 

This past year, we completely reconstituted and reconfigured the Duck Race in a renewal process 
that involved all aspects of the race. The race was moved from its traditional location at 
Hartwell Locks, to the canal area behind the National Arts Centre in downtown Ottawa; the 
ticket price \vas doubled to $10.00; the prizing was enhanced to incorporate a big prize package; 
and, as a result of these changes, the aInount of funds raised was substantially increased. 

The race has been repositioned as a prenlier fundraising event, and the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 
and the Foundation can look forward to increasing revenues in the coming years frOtTI the 
Duck Race. 

I would like to thank everyone involved in lnaking the Duck Race a success, including the 
CHEO Foundation, our Kiwanis and comlnunity partners, and the trelnendous support \ve 
receive fronl Rita Harper and Mike Kruger at the Ki\vanis office. 

I would also like to especially thank all of the past chairs, and Donna Drulnlnond, the Vice-Chair 
of this year's comlnittee, vvho tnade the job of Chair an easy and re\varding one. Finally, a 
special note of thanks to Kevin Keohane, who wears t\vo hats - one for the CI-IEO Foundation 
and one for the Kiwanis Club of Otta\va. 

COllllnittee menlbers: 

Vice-Chair: 
Vice-President: 
Director: 

Respectfully subnlitted, 

Anthony McGlynn, Chair 

Donna Drunlmond 
Derek Finley 
Neil McDonald 

Alison Poirier Ev Colton Mchael Zanon Guy Milne 
Peter Nadeau Ian McDonald Brian Kloppenburg Chris Tholnpson 



Ottawa Kiwanis Golf Tournament 2003 

To: The President and the Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 

The 6th Annual 2003 Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Charity Golf Tournament was a 
great success. In a year when the downturn in the economy made it a more difficult 
task to find sponsors I feel we fared very well. Attached to this report you will find a 
summary Statement of Revenue and Expenses. Essentially, we netted after 
expenses $61,161. This was approximately $5,000 more than budgeted. Through 
our first 6 years we have raised about $380,000 for various Kiwanis projects. 

I would personally like to thank all of the members of the Golf Tournament 
Committee for their outstanding contributions. I would also like to thank the Ottawa 
Hunt and Golf Club for being our very cooperative hosts. 

Looking forward to our next tournament. I feel there is every reason to expect 
another successful endeavor. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael D. Moore . 
2003 Tournament Chair 

2003 Organizing Committee 

• John Law 
• Shawn Williams 
• Frank Tipper 
• Bill Gosewitz 

• Ken Birch 
• Jim Bowie 
• Shirley Tomblin 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Jim Wright • Clive Woolley 
Tom Pullen • Lynda Campbell 
Barry Nicholds • John Norton 
Alan Smith • John Harcourt 
Jeff Kyle • Jeremy Moore 
Rick Seguin • Peter Nadeau 
Ross Hadwen • Ken Birch 
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-, Kiwanis Club Of Ottawa 
Golf Charity Tournament 2003 
Statement of Revenue and Expense 

Revenue 
Sponsorships 
Golf Play 
Silent Auction 
Sponsorship (in kind) 
Donations 

Expense 
Catering 
Fees, golf play 
Gifts 
Gifts (in kind) 
Carts 
Signs 
Insurance (shootout) 
Printing 
PubliCity 
Equipment Rental 
Misc 

lb 

Net Revenue 

51,150.00 
31,250.00 
18,330.00 

7,600.00 
2,250.00 

14,074.71 
12,187.30 

7,793.78 
7,600.00 
2,541.50 
1,420.20 
1,728.00 
1,407.24 

486.00 
110.00 

70.25 

110,580.00 

49,418.98 

61,161.02 



Interclub, Sports and Social Committee 2002-03 

To: The President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The committee's goals for the year were to provide as many social functions as 
possible, including some new functions for the membership of the club, as well as, to 
participate in as many Interclubs with other Kiwanis clubs in the Eastern Ontario 
regl0n. 

We were able to kick off the new year and enjoy a Western style party and dinner 
tribute to outgoing President Richard Munro and to welcome incoming President 
Rick Barrigar. This successful evening was held at the Lone Star Ranch with music, 
food, dancing and a "Members Only" style quiz, with prizes and a big cake for 
President Richard. 

In addition to maintaining the minimum one Interclub a month, we were able to 
complement it with a few Charter Night functions at other clubs as well, specifically 
with the new By town Club of Ottawa, held at the Ottawa Hunt & Golf Club. 

November 2002-I<iwanis Christmas Party - 85 people attended this event held at the 
Restaurant International of Algonquin College. A wonderful cocktail party took place 
followed by a superb dinner put on by the staff and culinary students of the Hotel & 
Restaurant program of the School of Hospitality, Algonquin College. Piano 
accompaniment was also available. 

Winter Skating Party - After having this event cancelled due to inclement weather for 
2 years in a row, this event came off on February 16/03 thanks to the hard work and 
efforts of Ross McIntyre. Eight families attended, including many children with 
cookies and hot chocolate served at the Governor General's skating rink. 

Mont Ste. Marie Ski Weekend - This event was carried off extremely well thanks to 
the hard work and efforts of Glen Vaillancourt and Rob Thompson. Approximately 
49 people were billeted along with the chalet owners who were extremely gracious in 
opening up their homes to us. The weekend began with a Friday night Lasagna 
dinner and reception held at the home of Gilles and Sylvia Langlois. A great day of 
skiing on Saturday was followed with another successful "Round Robin" dinner held 
at the homes of Allan Castledine, Wayne French and Walter Boyce. Special thanks to 
the sub-committee for helping to carry off the event. 

Members Golf Tournament - Held in June 2003 at Cedarhill Golf Club. Sub-
committee of Doug McGregor, Ross McHardy and Phil Rossy. Doug McGregor did 
a great job. Attended by over 68 golfers and well received by everyone. Weather co-
operated and a great day was had by all. continued ... 
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Interclub) Sports and Social - Page 2 

Family Splash Day July 2003 -This 2nd annual event was organized solely by Ross 
McIntyre. The event was held at Mont Cascades and was attended by approximately 
20 adults and children. Unfortunately, the weather and timing did not seem 
conducive for the event, compared to last year. Most of the kids (adults) had a ball, 
and it will be up to next year's committee to decide if it should be repeated again. 

Turnover Day - This year's turnover event is planned to be held at the National Press 
Club, with music, speeches and a buffet dinner to welcome new President David 
Daubney and to thank outgoing President Rick Barrigar. 

Finally, I would like to personally thank all of our committee members who faithfully 
put in many hours of their personal time and commitment to helping to make our 
social events well attended and successful. I<eep up the good work and let's have 
fun!!!! 

Respectfully submitted, 

Phil Rossy, Chair 

Committee Members: 
Vice-Chair: Alan Macintyre 
Director: Chris Thompson 
Vice-Pres. Derek Finley 

Victor Ferreira 
Doug McGregor 
Ana Nesic 
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Rob Thompson 
Sheri Farahani 
Victor Hanna 

Glen Vaillancourt 
Lee Storm 
Kathleen Holst 

Ross McIntyre 
Matt McGrath 
Lynda Campbell 



Key Club Committee 2002-03 

To the President and members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Our club continues to support four very active Key Clubs at Sir Robert Borden, Nepean, 
Lisgar and Glebe. They range in size from 15 to 50 members. 
We are planning to start a Builders Club at Notre Dame High School- Fall 2003 

Following are some of the many fund-raising events completed this year: 
Baked goods sales Canned drinks sales Tab collections 
Unicef Sock drive Hot chocolate sales 
Canadian Tire money Pizza sales Aids walk 
Spaghetti dinner Funds for Peru school Waffle breakfast 
Crocus sales Cookbooks 
World Vision 30 hour famine was cancelled due to SARS but $5,000. collected 

Other events included: 
Alex Dayton Christmas dinner 
Volunteering at the Mission 
Heart & Stroke telethon 

A brief list of other activities: 

Volunteering at Sandy Hill Comm Centre 
Gift wrapping at Bayshore 
Harmony House 

Trivia night early November - they worked as score keepers and runners 

Senators game tickets: Each club received 4 tickets and these have proven to be 
invaluable to them in conjunction with various fund raisers 

Luncheons at the Chateau. 127 Key Clubber luncheons were sponsored this year 

Bowling Social was held on February 23rd and was well-attended 

Annual Convention took place in Toronto, April 4 - 6th
• We had 16 attend. 

Six cancelled due to SARS concerns. They all really enjoyed the whole experience. 

Duck Race on May 31 th - Students from the following schools helped out and also 
worked at the Kids Zone: Lisgar, Nepean, Sir Robert Borden, Bell HS and Carleton 
Circle K. Lisgar, Glebe and SRB all sold duck race tickets. SRB sold 800 tickets and 
so qualified for the $500. bonus ( awarded if 500 tickets are sold ). 

Annual Key Club Luncheon on May 30th was hosted by Lisgar this year. 
The students ran a flawless luncheon. They all spoke very well as they delivered 
their reports and presented their Presidents Roses. 
Lisgar students provided entertainment with a classical jazz group. 
43 Key Clubbers attended. Continued ... 



Key Club - Page 2 

Year End Social was held May 22nd at the Lone Star Restaurant. 7 students attended, 
which is down significantly from past years. 

International Convention: No student attended this year. 

New Key Club member: We welcome Shaun Vardon to the Key Club committee 
and we are very pleased that he has also accepted the position of Vice Chair for 2003 -
2004. Also new are Ken Miller and Buck Madden who will be working at 
Notre Dame to start the Builders Club - Fall 2003 

The Key Club experience is invaluable for the students who are active in their clubs. The 
fund-raising they have done this year is phenomenal. They also benefit from the 
leadership skills they acquire, the sense of community service work, the friendships they 
make and many other positives. 

Thanks to all the Key Club committee members who are so conscientious about their 
work with the Key Clubs and the students. It is this participation, encouragement, time 
and effort that help make all the activities listed above possible. It was a pleasure to chair 
this committee this year. 

Vice-President: 
Director: 

Committee members: 
Doug McGregor 
Rocco D' Angelo 

Paul Poggione 
Buck Madden 

2.0 

Janet Dodds 
Chris Thompson 

Bruno DiChiara 
Ross McIntyre 

Guy Bourbonniere 
Shaun Vardon 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jan Mansfield, Chair 

Mike Flint (resigned from committee) 
Howard Lithwick 

Ken Miller 



LEGACY FOR LIFE COMMITTEE 2002-03 

To: The President, Board of Directors & Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The commitment to The Legacy For Life as a charity vehicle for the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa was really called into question as we moved forward to partner with the Community 
Foundation of Ottawa. This proposed partnership caused the committee to examine all aspects 
of charitable giving in the club. 

Several presentations were made to the Board of Directors on the proposed partnership and the 
Board, in its wisdom, made sure that due diligence was the byword for this new partnership. The 
Community Foundation worked with us to ensure that the concerns of the Board were met. The 
partnership with the Community Foundation is now a reality and should enhance the role of the 
Legacy Fund in the club, as well as the greater community. 

Guest Speakers -2003 
There were no quest speakers in 2003 as it was generally felt it would be confusing to the 
membership until there was a clear sense of direction for the Legacy Fund. 

Membership Poll 
The membership poll that was conducted by the committee in 2002 served as a model for 
how the committee felt we needed to present the Legacy Fund to the Club. 

Partnership between Legacy Fund and the Community Foundation. 
The committee is proud to finally bring the Legacy Fund and the Community Foundation 
together in a partnership. 

Relationship with the Medical Foundation 
It was the opinion of the committee that a clear line needs to be drawn in the Club as to 
the difference between the Medical Foundation and the Legacy Fund. The Club needs to 
know that they are two distinctly different charities. 

Revenue and Donations 
The total donations this year were $392.00 with no expenses. These funds will be transferred to 
our current fund to be managed by the Community Foundation. 

Chair's Appreciation 
I am grateful to all members for their patience & contributions through the year and a 
special thanks goes to Sally Burks for offering us her firm's office for our meetings. 

Committee Members: 
Guy Milne, Vice-Chair 
Bill Cowie, Director 

Sally Burks 
Ian Hendry 

Robert Houle 
Anthony McGlynn 

Yours sincerely, 

Edward (Ted) Parsons, Chair 

George Perrin 
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Kiwanis Medical Foundation Committee 2002-03 

To: The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa President, Board of Directors, and Members 

The objectives of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation are to advance 
medical research and treatment in Ottawa by providing funding to those engaged in such 
work or funding assistance to organizations with similar objectives. 

The review process involves a committee member visiting with the person(s) making the 
request and completing the Investigative Report to help determine the appropriateness of 
the request. The request along with the reviewing member's recommendation is then 
discussed at a regular KMF committee meeting and, where required, the person 
submitting the request is invited to make a presentation to the Foundation to answer any 
questions. 

Typical requests from the medical research and treatment community in Ottawa range 
between $1,000 and $10,000. The budget the KMF committee has to work with annually 
represents the investment income from its capital investments, which stand at about 
$700,000. Accordingly, depending on the investment climate, the KMF annual budget 
ranges between $40,000 and $50,000. With annual fees to the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 
for administration and annual audit fees, of approximately $4,000, the balance is 
available to support community requests that meet the KMF requirements. This year's 
supported events were: 

Dr. Gail Graham from CHEO is conducting research on a condition entitled 
Hemochromatosis. This is a disease that results in an iron overload in the 
body, which if not treated immediately, will lead to death. The KMF 
supported her request of $5,000 in 2001 to start and establish a database of 
people that have contracted the deadly virus. This year we funded a further 
$5,000 to establish a database of individuals infected with Hemochromatosis. 

The Kiwanis Medical Foundation and the Kiwanis Club received good 
exposure to the community, through a televised cheque presentation to the 
University of Ottawa Heart Institute, during the Heart Institute's annual 
telethon. 

The annual KMF luncheon was successful with Dr. Gail Graham speaking to the club 
about the effects of Hemochromatosis on the body and the population. 

This past year marked the return of the Bed Race. Through the leadership initiatives of 
both Steve Georgopoulos and Steve Moore, the race was an incredible success in raising 
$13,000 for the Medical Foundation. With only three short months to prepare for the 
event and minus 40-degree weather the day of the event, the proceeds were extremely 
remarkable. 

Continued ... 
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Kiwanis Medical Foundation, Page 2 

In closing, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to President Rick Barrigar. I 
would not have had this great opportunity to Chair a great committee if it wasn't for his 
faith in my abilities. 

Last but not least, my thanks go out to all those on the Medical Foundation for their hard 
work and camaraderie throughout the year. My thanks would not be complete without 
recognizing the help of Joyce Stewart, Mike Kruger and Rita Harper. 

Committee Members: 
Vice-Chair: Debra-Lynn Menard 
Vice-President: David Daubney 
Director: Michel Podeszfinski 

Allan Castledine 
Richard Clayman 
Donna Drummond 
Victor Ferreira 
Steve Georgopoulos 
Jackie Holzman 
George Perrin 
Botho von Hampeln 

Yours in Kiwanis, 

Paul Poggione, Chair 2002-2003 
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Membership Committee 2002-2003 

To: The President, Board of Directors and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Membership Committee is responsible for the recruitment and introduction of 
new members, monitoring of attendance records, the April Fools Day luncheon and 
resignations. In 2002-2003, the club received 20 resignations and introduced 15 new 
members, ending our year with 215 members as follows: 

Active Members 140 
Senior Members 67 
Honorary Members 7 
Privileged Members _1 
Total 215 

The most exciting addition to the Kiwanis family occurred May 21, 2003, with the 
birth of Membership Chairs triplets, Mackenzie, Courtney and Leigh Mckeage. 
Murray McKeage understandably took a leave of absence and Geoff Godding agreed 
to complete the year as interim Chair. 

15 New members who joined in 2002-2003: 
Victor Hanna 
Ana Nesic 
Rick Seguin 
Kim Ellard 
Kathleen Holst (former 

member) 

20 Resignations in 2002-03: 
Ann Max 
Greg Payne 
John Klatt 
Jim Wright 
Mary Bradford 
Kate McLeod 
Barry Young 

Jennifer Rae (former) 

Alison Poirier 
Shaun Vardon 
Paul Cook 
Mukesh Gupta 
Joyce Stewart 

Jim Watson 
Guy Beauregard 
Frank Tipper 
Siva Chidambaram 
Michael Liang 
Patrick Flain 
Susan Menzies 

Summary of Attendance 2002-2003 
# of Members Attendance % 

Active Members 
37 
30 
28 
50 

Senior Members 
3 
7 
4 

49 

100% 
70-100% 
50-70% 
<50% 

100% 
70-100% 
50-70% 
<50% 

Anne Bachinski 
Dr. Kanta Marwah 
Julie Francisco 
Dawn Pickering 

Darrell Powell 
Major Cliff Hollman 
Paul Nemeth 
Richard Clayman 
Bryan Healey 
Peter Markham 

% of Active Members 

26 
21 
19 
34 

5 
11 
4 

49 
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Membership Committee, continued ... 

Murray and Geoff would like to thank the members of the membership committee for 
their hard work and dedication, as well as, Rita and Mike at the office for their 
continued assistance throughout the year. 

Committee Members 
Vice-Chair: Bill Siekierski 
Vice-President: Janet Dodds 
Director: Lynda Campbell 
Director: Myrna Beattie 

Don Blakslee 
Vince Calzonetti 
David Fair 
Frank Hegyi 
Dawn Morewood 

Respectfully submitted 

Chair: Murray McKeage 
Interim Chair: Geoff Godding 

Les Morin 
Jennifer Rae 
Barry Weatherdon 
Ron Wing 
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MUSIC/ENTERTAINMENT COMMITTEE 2002 - 2003 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

For 2002 - 2003, given my continuing in the role of Chair, the goals were the same as the year 
previous. They were: to make an average of one musical presentation per month, keep rehearsals 
as short and effective as necessary, and that the members of the Music and Entertainment 
Committee should have as much FUN as possible. Again, in this regard, I believe we were 
generally successful with 10 planned presentations, only 6 rehearsals and, once again, committee 
members indicated they had fun - I know I did! 

Following is a summary of the events in which the Music and Entertainment Committee 
participated: 

Nov. 8 
Dec. 7 
Dec. 8 
Dec.20 
Feb. 11 
Mar. 14 
Mar.28 
May 2 
May 9 
Sep.26 

- Remembrance Day Luncheon 
- Parkinson's Society Christmas Party at the Pallisades 
- Food Bank at the Corel Center (cancelled) 
- Kiwanis Christmas Luncheon 
- Valentine's Day Luncheon 
- S1. Patrick's Day Luncheon 
- ECC Convention Luncheon 
- Camp Banting Dinner at the Helenic Centre 
- Legion Luncheon and Abe Lieff tribute at the Congress Centre 
- Turnover Day Luncheon 

As with any successful committee, special thanks go to a number of people who made my task so 
much easier. They include: Shirley Tomblin, who was, and is always available and helpful, as 
only Shirley can do; Stephen Smye our talented pianist; Bob Gordon a pianist who filled in when 
Stephen was not available; Mark Max for his "custom" lyrics for special events; Sandra Presley 
(and husband Bill, as required), who made rehearsal arrangements at the Alex Dayton Center; 
Dominic D' Arcy for his work on the Christmas Luncheon; and Past President Wayne Beaudoin 
and Director Mike S1. Louis, who were ready to help me and the committee as required. Finally, 
I would acknowledge the contribution of the Notre Dame Cathedral youth choir members who 
participated in 3 special events - the arrangements for which were coordinated through Buck 
Madden. 

For the 2003 - 2004 year, I wish Lorne Usher the best of luck in taking over the Music and 
Entertainment Committee which will now include responsibility for the Ottawa Club's role in the 
Kiwanis Music Festival. 

Participating Committee Members: Wayne Beaudoin, Myrna Beattie, Bruno DiChiara, Wayne 
French Ross Hadwen, Larry Haffner, Paul Kane, Buck Madden, Mark Max, Sue Menzies, Mike 
Moore, Steve Moore, Mike S1. Louis, Stephen Smye, Shirley Tomblin, Lorne U,sher, Bob 
Vergette, Val Wilkins. 

Respectfully submitted 

E. R. (Bob) Kingham, Chair 



Music Festival Committee Report 2002-2003 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

Once again, we can look back on another first class Kiwanis Music Festival in the National Capital 
Region. After many years of building and growing, we can proudly say that our Kiwanis Music Festival 
is thriving - it has found its "rhythm". Moreover, it is now often regarded as the main music festival in 
Canada, which can be attributed to excellent work and guidance of the Festival Board in recent years. 

This year's festival attracted the participation of over 10,000 young musicians. The successes of those 
students who advanced from our festival to the Provincial and National competitions reflect the high 
standards set in Ottawa, and underline the value of our program to students, teachers, and the 
community. 

The financial position of the Festival continues to strengthen, although a recent cutback in municipal 
support means that the assistance of the Kiwanis Clubs in Divisions 12 and 13 remains vital and ever 
appreciated. Beyond the contributions from our Clubs and revenues raised from entrance fees, Bingo 
has become the primary source of festival income. 

In just a few short years, the festival website (http://www.ottawakiwanismusicfestivaLcom/) has become 
the source for information regarding our festivaL Much like all things internet, the year-over-year 
growth in traffic has been exponential, with this year's traffic during the prime February to May festival 
period reaching over 230,000 visits! Beyond the obvious logistical benefits to the festival, this provides 
yet another means by which the profile of Kiwanis is raised within the community. 

Lastly, the appreciation of the participants is palpable, and their willingness to "give back" is 
demonstrated regularly. A new initiative this year was the Seniors' Concert, which was held on May 16 
in the afternoon preceding our regular Highlights Concert. In planning the event, it was hoped there 
would be enough interest to fill the orchestra level of the theatre. With the support of the Community 
Foundation and the Kiwanis Club of Manotick, tickets were available at no charge to area seniors' 
homes and residences. By the time the curtain rose, the event sold out and had exceeded all 
expectations, to the delight of 700 seniors who were treated to a first class concert followed by a 
reception. 

Our own club has benefited in a similar fashion from time-to-time at our weekly luncheons. Could 
anyone forget the thrill and amazement we felt upon hearing the 60-piece band from Ecole Elementaire 
Publique Le Prelude under the direction of Michel Rochon? 

In conclusion, I would like to express many heartfelt thanks to all our members whose participation 
contributed to the success of this year's festivaL Notably, and as always, special thanks and recognition 
are warranted to both Shirley Tomblin and Ross Hadwen, who continue to work tirelessly in support of 
this great festivaL In the true Kiwanis spirit of "Young Children Priority One", we look forward to 
maintaining this momentum of success. Here's to an even better festival in 2004! 

Respectfully submitted, 
Stephen Smye, Chair 
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Partners In Caring Committee 2002-03 

To: The President and Members of the I<iwanis Club of Ottawa 

Once, again, The Partners In Caring project was an outstanding success! We made a 
number of minor changes this year that enabled us to achieve this success. 

The first change was to the 50/50 raffle tickets, whereby we assisted the Ottawa 
Senators Foundation in selling tickets, on the night of the game, and in return, they 
committed $15,000 to the Boys and Girls Club of Ottawa. 

The second change had to deal with the ticket sales. Rather than just deal with 
individual tickets, we structured a number of packages that included other amenities 
in addition to the tickets. 

Thanks to the very generous contribution from a number of Kiwanians, we sold out 
the Title Sponsorship. A special thanks goes to Shirley Tomblin for organizing the 
volunteers and running the 50/50 raffle draw. 

Throughout this project, the Ottawa Senators Hockey Club was very supportive and 
generous in providing product and in the pricing. The Senators provided us with 
tickets and a suite that we were able to auction off, both live and over the internet. 
This was set up and run by Elliot Melamed, who was very generous with his time 
and expertise. 

In summary, the PIC project raised $15,000 for the Boys and Girls Club and 
approximately $19,000 for the Precious Minds Read-a-thon. 

My thanks go out to all the committee members and, in particular, to Tom and Jeff 
Spence, who sold more than 50% of the tickets, and also to all the I<iwanians who 
supported this project. 

We are now moving forward to the 2003-2004 project with additional changes that 
we think will make this fundraiser even more successful. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Director: Derek Finley 
Vice Chairs: Brian Quinn, Tom Pullen, Jeff Kyle Clive A. Woolley, Chair 

Peter Charboneau, Steve Weeks, Tom Spence, Jeff Spence, Mike Sharp, Bruce 
Brooks, Bill Siekierski, Ross McHardy, Ron Wing, Alan Smith, Devon Wingate, 
Shirley Tomblin, Steven Moore 



Passing the Torch Committee - 2002-03 

To: The President, Board of Directors and the Members 

The Passing the Torch Committee had a successful year. We raised $110,501, with a pledge of 
$50,000 still outstanding, that may be realized in the coming year. 

Letters were written to all Canadian Kiwanis Clubs bringing to their attention the Passing the 
Torch Campaign. This initiative resulted in $3,650 being donated, with some pledges to come 
in the new year. 

A very delightful concert was held at Centrepointe Theatre featuring the Blackburn Chorus and 
the Central Band of the Canadian Armed Forces. The concert netted over $5,000. 

A mess dinner was held at the Cartier Square Drill Hall. This dinner was conducted with all the 
traditional military pomp and circumstance. 150 people were in attendance and over $14,000 
was raised for the War Museum. Over 50 Kiwanians and their partners supported this dinner. 

From the public, we have raised $20,000. Ottawa Kiwanians have donated $7,700 plus a 
$50,000 gift from Kiwanian Bill Shenkman. The committee is continuing to solicit further 
donations. 

I wish to thank the committee for their great support and enthusiasm, as well as guidance from 
Director Ross Christensen and President-Elect David Daubney. 

Committee Members: 

Vice Chairman: 
Vice President: 
Director: 

Walter Boyce 

Ken Miller ( Concert) 
David Daubney 
Ross Christensen 

Frank Cauley (Archival Research) 
Martin Diegel 
Aubrey de Young 
Donna Drummond (Tracking Club 

Veterans and War Time History) 
Jack Gordon 
Brian Healey 
Ed Healey 

Respectfully submitted, 

Allan Castledine, Chairman 

Bob Littlemore (Liaison Canadian 
Kiwanis Clubs) 

Buck Madden 
Matt McGrath 
Art Moody 
John O'Neil 
Ian Peddle 
Vic Reed 
Bob Vergette 
Doug Wilson 

(Raffles) 
(Public Relations) 
(Secretary) 

(Ticket Sales) 
(Mess Dinner) 



Programme / Public Relations Committee 2002-03 

To: The President, Board of Directors and Members of the Club 

What a busy year and where did the time go? 
Adhering to our Committee mandate, you can see from the Programme Stats attached, that our 
committee offered some very interesting speakers this year. 
We were able to arrange speakers on a variety of topics from our membership and their many 
contacts. Our topics included the medical field, communication, house swapping, justice, 
bank mergers, and entrepreneurship. Who can forget our very memorable luncheon at the 
Ottawa Congress Centre in September with the Ottawa Renegades and 700 attendees! The 
largest luncheon meeting our club has ever had! And what about all those members helping, 
without recognition, behind the scenes? 

A number of our luncheon meetings were reserved for our own committees such as 
Music/Entertainment Committee, Circle K, Duck Race, Key Club, Passing The Torch, 
Medical Foundation, Partners In Caring, and others. We realized our objective of having at 
least one of these per month. In addition, we arranged to have some of our own Kiwanis 
members 'speak' to us and these were often the most entertaining meetings 

This year, the Board of Directors agreed to merge the Public Relations with the Programme 
Committee. Jamie Johnson was very helpful to us and offered his expertise as requested to 
this part of our Committee. The PR Committee coordinated 6 ads in the Ottawa Citizen, 2 
press releases, 7 photo sessions and a one year-end video to present to President Rick Barrigar 
at Turnover Day. I think we got him! 

Also as part of our Club's P.R., Jamie maintained our 3 websites: ottawakiwanis.org, 
preciousminds.org and nevershakeababy.org , which now totals 1,434 pages, and had a total of 
16,340 searches made on the site. Thanks, Jamie. 

Many thanks for a great year, both to the committee members, as well as the other members at 
large who invited and arranged for speakers. Another big thanks to the members who 
arranged and hosted a meeting at their home. The camaraderie was always very evident. 
The committee enjoyed lively participation from all its members and we thank the following 
for their continued support: 

Don Blakslee Wayne French Dawn Morewood 
Jackie Holzman Mukesh Gupta Ted Parsons 
John Callan Robert Houle Lome Usher 
Peter Charboneau Don Keyes Steve Weeks 
David Daubney Art Moody Ron Wing 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jane Flain, Chair 
Programme / Public Relations 2002-03 
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(kt ?OO to "It ?OO 
Guarant'd 

GGFd Oate Billed Chateau Active SRI GSTS Mem Key Circk Air % 2002-2003 Programmes 
amount laurier TOTAL Han Club K Cadets Cadets Prog staff Attend 

OcU04/02 142 120 141 88 13 37 3 17 2 1 2 Ottawa Senators Day - (Ballroom booked) 

OcU11/02 97 100 97 70 10 7 1 5 1 3 THANKSGIVING - Father Joe LeClair 

OcU18/02 100 100 100 79 5 13 1 2 Dr. Elaine Jolly - Director of the Ottawa Woman's 

OcU25/02 120 120 107 79 8 15 1 1 3 Ray Hession - Pres. Ottawa Hospital 

Nov/01/02 132 100 132 84 15 21 2 4 2 1ycpo 1 2 Mike Harris - Author of The Con Game 

Nov/08/02 125 120 121 81 7 11 1 5 5 8 1 2 REMEMBRANCE DAY LUNCHEON 

Nov/15/02 100 100 96 76 11 4 1 2 0 2 Mike Lundy/Jackie Holzman - House Exchanges 

Nov/22/02 132 130 139 69 14 8 2 40 6-S.Aim 1 2 Merv Beckstead, Ottawa Carleton Dist Sch Board 

Nov/29102 124 125 112 73 8 25 1 1 2 2 Michel Vennet, Federal & Industrial Bank 

Decl06/02 105 100 107 79 10 7 7 2 2 Ron Cleminson, former UN commissioner 

Decl13/02 99 100 99 67 12 16 1 2-S.Aim 1 2 Dr. Pierre Turgeon 

Decl20102 170 150 155 45 10 98 2 FAMILY PARTY - Santa! 

Decl27/02 0 0 0 No Meeting 

Jan/03/03 38 14 38 35 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Round Table 

Jan/10/03 100 100 99 82 8 4 2 1 bee 1 2 David Vienneau-Global TV 

Jan/17/03 100 100 72 58 9 2 1 2 Moved to Delta - Rev. G.Sinciair speaker 

Jan/24/03 80 100 85 71 12 2 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Jan/31/03 100 100 91 72 7 8 2 1BED 1 1 Dr. David Levine 

Feb/07/03 110 100 101 66 6 25 1 1 2 Ron Mcinnis, TD Canada Trust 

Feb/14/03 99 100 94 67 10 11 1 1 2 1 Part 0 1 YCPO/PARTNERS IN CARING 

Feb/21/03 CAPONES 103 75 13 10 1 1 ycpo 1 2 David Jeanes, Highway 417 expansion 

Feb/28/03 100 100 74 62 6 3 1 2 Dan Gardner, Decriminalization of Drugs 

Mar/07/03 100 100 94 66 14 8 3 1 2 Peter Andrews,ln Touch Surveys 

Mar/14/03 99 100 93 59 7 8 17 1 1 Circle K Luncheon/ St. Pat ricks Day 

Mar/21103 99 100 85 67 8 6 1 1 2 John Rapp,Committees Taking Charge 

Mar/28/03 159 140 136 65 2 44 7 15 ycpo 2 1 EC&C Governor, Bill Stuart 

Apr/04/03 150 145 67 6 2 4 PIC 64 duck 2 Duck Race Luncheon OTTAWA CONGRESS CH 

Apr/11/03 99 100 92 76 8 4 1 1 2 NEW MEMBERS' LUNCHEON (HI-JINX) 

Apr/18103 79 80 70 53 7 5 2 1 2 Reverend Shane Parker, Christ Church Cathedral 

Apr/25/03 249 250 249 65 15 11 157 Sal Army (billed for 175) 1 SALVATION ARMY - RED SHIELD LUNCHEON 

May/02/03 119 120 133 74 12 12 1 PTT 17 14 1 2 Passing the Torch, General Manson, Air Cadets 

May/09/03 115 150 123 79 20 21 1 2 LEGION OF HONOUR Congress Centre 

May/16103 100 100 109 84 8 13 1 BonA 1 2 Dr. Ginette Rodger - The Ottawa Hospital 

May/23/03 99 100 78 63 5 6 2 2 Kiwanis Music Festival 60 piece band 

May/30/03 115 100 128 65 5 13 43 2 KEY CLUB LUNCHEON 

Jun/06/03 100 100 83 66 6 7 2 MED F 2 Medical Foundation 

Jun/13/03 85 100 77 63 12 0 2 SEMI-ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING 

Jun/20/03 99 100 81 66 5 6 1 1 2 Huguette Labelle, Chancellor U of Ottawa 

Jun/27/03 100 100 68 51 7 5 3 2 Canada Day Breakfast, MUSEUM of Science & Te 

Jul/04/03 0 0 0 Cancelled - no meeting this week 

Ju1l11/03 79 100 71 60 4 4 1 2 Roch Carriere, Literacy Library and Archives 

Ju1l18/03 69 70 79 69 8 2 SEMI-ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING 

Jul/25/03 79 80 66 48 7 6 2 1 2 SENIORS LUNCHEON (or hereabouts) 

Aug/01/03 41 42 42 38 1 1 2 Round Table 

Aug/08/03 89 68 68 48 9 7 1 1 2 Carol Cochrane, "Community Crime" 

Aug/15/03 0 0 0 Power Outage NO MEETING AllaR BaseR, SalvalieR AFffiY 

Aug/22103 30 30 31 25 4 1 1 Round Table 

Aug/29/03 0 0 0 CANCELLED - no meeting this week 

Sep/05/03 770 720 720 79 23 612 4 2 Brad Watters, Eric Tillman, Grey Cup Kickoff 

Sep/12/03 100 100 88 70 5 8 2 1 2 Bruce Firestone, Bootstrap Entrepreneurs 

Sep/19/03 79 100 96 74 7 9 3 3 Honorable Denis Coderre, Immigration Policies 

Sep/26/03 109 110 96 72 10 10 2 2 TURNOVER DAY - Goodbye to Board and President 

TOTALS 5434 5489 5382 3190 422 1152 34 284 38 23 102 0 46 91 TOTALS 

Oct 2002 to Sept 2003 Programme Stats 12/23/2003 



Senior Citizen / Hands-On Committee Report 2002-2003 

To: The President, Board of Directors and Members of The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This is the second year in which we have run ajoint program aimed at meeting both the Club's goals for 
Seniors-oriented services, as well as those of our traditional "Hands-On" activities. 
Through the seventeen different projects the committee undertook, members and in many cases their 
friends and family members, have helped to enhance the quality of life for many Ottawa Senior Citizens. 
in addition, the many "Hand's-On" activities have provided much needed practical help to our 
community. 
Through it all, volunteers have enjoyed a strong sense of comradeship, fellowship and achievement. I 
provide below a summary of this year's projects: 

ABBEYFIELD HOUSE 
October 5,2002 Our program year got off to a clean start when over a dozen members volunteered to 
help with both the Spring clean-up as well as the laying of new patio stones at Abbeyfield House, a 
seniors' non-profit cooperative residence. 

FALL LEAF TOUR 
October 18 Bob Fisher organized a traditional Fall Leaf Tour to the Gatineau Hills by bus - with 46 
Seniors of the Clementine Towers - a rent-to-income seniors-only apartment building near Billings Bridge 
- a good time was had by all! 

HARMONY HOUSE 
October 19 Our mission was to Install 130 curtains on 61 windows in 16 apartments at Harmony House. 
Members, friends and family contributed over 300 volunteer hours under the leadership of Steve Moore. 
This included 175 by Joyce Moore - Steve's mom, and over 20 hrs from former member Tom Moore, 
Steve's dad. Don Blakslee donated the material and Joyce & Tom Moore custom made 130 curtains and 
attached loops to accommodate the new curtain rods for the installation by other volunteers. 

CITIZENSHIP COURT 
In December 2002 Bob Horlick orchestrated yet another event that saw several Kiwanians join in 
welcoming approximately 100 new Canadians with a small celebration featuring a cake refreshments. 

FREE HEARING SCREENING (for children under 5) 
Myrna Beattie & Sam Bhargava represented the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa on many occasions throughout 
the year by providing support and refreshments to the audiologists, technicians, parents and children 
participating in this important and valuable testing program. 

SALVATION ARMY ANNUAL TOY CENTRE 
December 21 The Salvation Army Annual Toy Centre collects, sorts, and distributes gifts each Christmas 
to approximately 5000 area families (7500 children). The Kiwanians answered the call for much needed 
help in late December with a well-coordinated effort by Don Blakslee and 24 Kiwanian family members. 
Let's get involved earlier next year as part of the planning committee. 

CHRISTMAS LUNCHEON 
The time-honoured Kiwanis tradition of hosting a Christmas Luncheon for Senior Citizens was once 
again observed in style at the Alex Dayton Centre. The multi-talented Dominic D'Arcy entertained and 
amused, while over 35 Kiwanians and their families welcomed approximately 125 Seniors. Key Clubbers 
assisted with coat check. This is a wonderful opportunity for members and their families to bringjoy into 
the lives of so many seniors, many of whom would otherwise be alone at this time. A Great Kiwanis 
Tradition! 
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Senior Citizens / Hands-On, continued .... 
TULIP TOUR 
Bill Gosewitz played host to over 50 Seniors from city sponsored "seniors only" apartment buildings to 
take in the delights of Ottawa's Annual Tulip Festival. A bus was provided by the club. 

ONTARIO SPECIAL OLYMPICS 
The club made a big contribution to a significant national sports competition through preparing floor 
hockey playing surfaces, officiating, time-keeping, etc. Bob Horlick and his team once again excelled in 
organization and team spirit as they met and mastered this major organizational challenge. 

MAYOR'S JULY I st SENIOR BREAKFAST 
Ottawa's mayor again hosted his annual (free) breakfast for senior citizens at the Aberdeen Pavillion at 
Landsdowne Park on the morning of July 1 st. The Club took on an even larger role this year as over 20 
Kiwanians, Family and friends actually served approximately 5,000 meals. 

SENIORS CANAL CRUISE 
Don Blakslee arranged a free boat ride in August for 60 seniors - 20 each from the 3 Seniors-only 
apartment buildings with which we have been in touch during the program year. Don Keyes and Eric 
Cosgrove welcomed them aboard. The three volunteer activity coordinators from the three buildings met 
for the first time on board and now plan some joint events in future. 

SAVE THE EX 
It was all win/win! The Club answered the call to help sell 50/50 tickets at the "Save The Ex" booth at 
this year's Central Canada Exhibition in August. Many participants were rewarded with free midway 
passes, organizers sold a lot of tickets and the club received a nice contribution to our operating fund. 

A.L.S.O 
Bill Cowie and Gordon Fleming once again rolled up their sleeves to help A.L.S.O (Alternative Learning 
Style and Outlooks) who support low income families with remedial reading. The project was to create 
partitions and shelving for Family Literacy Resource Room. 

OTT A W A SAFETY VILLAGE 
Gordon Fleming & Ross Hadwen repaired roofs on the sight of the Ottawa Safety Village. 

GUITAR 
The club receives many requests for assistance that are beyond our ability to satisfY. Every now and then 
though the generosity of the members is reflected in small acts of kindness that have a lasting effect. For 
example, we received a touching letter from a seniors residence with no entertainment facilities or 
musical instruments, but plenty of spirit and talent in the house. Within a week of learning of the need for 
a guitar, member Bob Kingham donated a beautiful guitar and case. 

Vice President: Janet Dodds 
Director: Linda Campbell 

Myrna Beattie 
Bob Fisher 
Wayne French 

Don Blakslee 
Gord Flem ing 
Doug Wilson 

Sincerely, 

Eric Cosgrove 
Chairman, Seniors/Hands-On Committee 2002-03 

Bill Gosewitz 
David Kardish 
Steve Moore 

Bob Horlick 
Ross Hadwen 
Bill Cowie Marcia Saipe 



Spiritual Aims & International Affairs, and Aktion Club 2002-03 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This committee currently covers three distinct areas for the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa: 

Firstly, we promote the first Objective of Kiwanis International which is "To Give Primacy to 
the Human and Spiritual rather than the Material Values of Life". 

Secondly, we investigate and support international projects. 

Thirdly, we support activities of the developmentally delayed adult members of the AKtion Club. 

Achievements over the past year: 

- Co-ordinated the monthly schedule of Chaplains for our Friday luncheons 
- Continued to search for new Chaplains to join the Club 
- Initiated the saying of the invocation by non-chaplains who are members of the Club from 
different religious disciplines 
- Arranged for Reverend Shane Parker to speak at Maundy Thursday 
- Arranged for Brigadier General, Michel Gauthier, Director of General Intelligence, National 
Defence to speak at Remembrance Day Luncheon 
- Co-ordinated assistance to the Salvation Army Christmas Kettle Appeal 
- Sponsored twelve children at $300.00 per child for the year through the Salvation Army's 
F oster Children Program 
- Provided four bursaries of $1 ,000.00 each to theological students attending Saint Paul 
University 
- Promoted attendance at AKtion Club dinners by Kiwanis Club members 
- Provided funds upon requests received from the following: 

a) Ottawa Student Health Initiative 
b) Barry Turner to ship computers to Tanzania 

- Promoted prayer week within the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 
- Developed a relationship with a sponsored church group which sponsorship is limited to paying 
for lunches only 

The Committee Members must be thanked for their work over the last year. 

Committee Members: 

Respectfully submitted 
Sally Burks as acting Chair. 

Vice Chair: Major Cliff Hollman 
Directors: Myrna Beattie and David Daubney 

Thomas C. Assaly, 
Sam Bhargava, 
Vince Calzonetti, 

Bill Cowie, 
Bill Harsh, 
Michael Liang, 

Buck Madden, 
Harold Moore, 
Father Bill More 



Strategic Planning Committee Report 2002-2003 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

This was a watershed year for the Strategic Planning Committee with the delivery and approval 
of a new Strategic Plan. In addition to a significant number of Committee meetings, there were 
three meetings with the Board, a special edition of the eDGE, two Club presentations and an 
orientation session for incoming chairs. 

The Strategic Planning Committee provides the Club with a two page plan that is intended to 
address the issues and opportunties that face the Club. Major recommendations include: 

o The creation of Steering Committees for Fund Raising, Community Service and 
Operations. Each of these will be chaired by Vice President or President Elect and will 
assist in communication betweend committees. 

o The Fund Raising Steering Committee will establish a sponsorship committee which will 
be used to approach sponsors with a long range co-ordinated plan. 

o The Community Service Steering Committee will increase the Club's focus on children 
and youth by creating synergy between the Club's committees while creating high impact 
projects. 

o The Operations Steering Committee will focus on ways of getting more 'involved' 
members by improving the membership experience and improving communications 
inside the Club and to the community. 

The Committee is looking forward to a very active and dynamic year for 2003-2004 as the 
implementation of the strategic plan begins with the support of the Board, Committee Chairs and 
the members of the Club. 

Committee members: 
Jamie Johnson (Chair) 
Guy Bourbonierre 
John Callan 
Peter Charbonneau 
Ross Christensen 
Steve Weeks 

David Daubney 
Janet Dodds 
Derek Finley 
Frank Hegyi 
Debra Lynn Menard 

Respectfully submitted 

J.JL 
Jamie Johnson 
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Kiwanis Club of Ottawa - Strategic Plan - Committee Structure 

Steering Committees 2003-04 

OPERATIONS COMMUNITY SERVICE FUND RAISING 

Chair - Derek Finley Chair - Sam Bhargava Chair - Neil McDonald 

Staples 403 Bank St Staples 403 Bank St Staples 403 Bank St 

1st Monday 7:00 - 9:00 pm 2nd Monday 7:00-9:00pm 4th Monday 7:00-9:00pm 

Participating Committees 

Interclub, Sports & Social - Cadets - Bed Race-
Chair Kathleen Holst Chair Bob Vergette Chair Steve Georgopoulos 

Legacy - Medical Foundation - Bon Appetit Silent Auction -
Chair Ian Hendry Chair Victor Ferreira Chair Phil Rossy 

Membership - Senior / Hands On - Dream / Duck Race -
Chair Geoff Godding Chair Doug Wilson Chair Anthony McGlynn 

Music / Music Festival - Spiritual Aims & Int'} Affairs - Golf Tournament -
Chair Lorne Usher Chair Bill Cowie Chair John Norton 

Programme - Sponsored Youth Circle K - Partners In Caring-
Chair Dawn Morewood Chair Val Wilkins Chair Clive Woolley 

Public Relations - Sponsored Youth Key Club - Ways & Means -
Chair Don Keyes Chair Jan Mansfield Chair Tom Beveridge 

Strategic Planning - Young Children Priority One -
Chair Jamie Johnson Chair Will Thompson 

Youth & Community Services - Chair 
Les Morin 

Strategic Planning Rep - Jamie Johnson Strategic Planning Rep - Steve Weeks Strategic Planning Rep - Peter Charboneau 

Public Relations Rep - Public Relations Rep - Public Relations Rep -

Members at Large - Members at Large - Members at Large -

Minute Taker - Rita Harper 
'---

Minute Taker - Mike Kruger - Minute Taker - Mike Kruger 

Board Meetings will be held on the 3rd Monday of each month at 90 Sparks Street, 4th Floor Boardroom 
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Ways and Means Committee Report 2002-03 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Ways and Means Committee meets once a month during the year. Its mandate is to 
review and audit existing Kiwanis Committees as chosen by the Board of Directors. The 
review would include challenges it faces in carrying out its objectives, to determine whether 
the objectives comply with Kiwanis' overall mandates, and to offer assistance to the 
committees in achieving their goals. 
The second mandate of the Committee is to review any new initiatives brought before the 
Club and ascertain whether the requests comply with the "Criteria for Funding Community 
Service Projects" 

During the past year the Committee was faced with making hard decisions. The Club's 
financial picture was out of sequence with the requests being tabled to our Committee. The 
Club was also asked to give over large amounts of funds as well as making commitments that 
would be more than one year in length. Adding to the financial situation, was that several 
requests were from organizations that Kiwanis had historically supported both from a funding 
side and a hands-on side. This made it difficult for the Committee and the Board to address. 

Some of the requests received were from The Ottawa Hospital, The Ottawa Boys and Girls 
Club, St. Vincent's Hospital, The Salvation Army and Harmony House. It became evident that 
this year, until the Club's financial picture improved, we couldn't support any of these 
worthwhile proposals. The Committee reported to the Board their findings and President Rick 
made the necessary decisions. 

On a positive note, the Committee suggested that the Club be more hands-on and try to find 
projects that would be in sync with our mandate of Young Children - Priority One and 
Literacy for Kids. Get involved with programs that the Club can control 

The Board was very positive about reducing our involvement with some of the larger players 
and concentrating on what Kiwanis is known for and that is Community involvement and 
raising awareness to those who are less fortunate with emphasis on children. 

The Committee was taken over during the summer months with a new Chair, Tom Beveridge, 
who formed a much larger Committee to tackle new projects. I thank my committee members 
for their support. 

Committee members: 
Vice-President: Derek Finley 
Director: Sam Bhargava 
Peter Nadeau: Vice-Chair 

Jim Bowie Walter Boyce 

Sincerely, 

John Booth, Chair 

Ed Healey Richard Munro Brian Quinn 



Young Children Priority One Committee 2002-03 

To: The President and Members of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

In 2002/03 the Young Children Priority One Committee managed five projects that touched the 
lives of thousands of children and families in our community. I'm pleased to provide you with a 
brief summary of our work: 

Kiwanis Read-a-thon - Pilot Project 
• Launched first-ever Kiwanis Read-a-thon in April 
• 16 Ottawa elementary schools participated 
• 4,677 children from 211 classrooms read 38,286 books 
• Four schools used Read-a-thon as a fund-raiser 
• 839 students from 80 classes raised $20,513.00 
• Read-a-thon schools received a $500.00 gift certificate from Scholastic Canada 
• Committee members volunteered their time to acted as School Champions 

Reading Is Fundamental Program - Connaught Public School 
• Over 30 Club members provided over 300 hours of volunteer reading time 
• Collected and donate books for school library 
• Collected winter cloths for kids in need 
• Provided funding for a school field trip 

Hearing/Screening Program 
• Provided funding for several hearing and screening clinics held across our region 
• Committee members volunteered at the hearing and screening clinics 

Precious Minds Educational Video 
• Distributed and sold over 1,000 copies 

Never Shake a Baby Educational Video 
• Distributed and sold over 500 copies 

It's been a great year, and I would like to sincerely thank all committee members for their hard work 

Sam Bhargava 
Ross Hadwen 

Derek Finley 
Jamie Johnson 

Sincerely, 

Howard Whittaker, Chair 

Dominic F errarotto 
Don Keyes 

Harold Geller 
Will Thompson 



Youth & Community Services Committee 2002-2003 

To: The President and Members of The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa 

The Youth & Community Services Committee provides much needed financial assistance to 
those in our community, who seek our help in achieving their goals. This year, we processed 
over 100 requests and donated over $27,000 dollars to the most worthy projects. Listed below are 
several examples of how Kiwanis funds assisted members of our community. 

• OCRI-Ottawa School Board school breakfast program $10,000 
• The Christmas Exchange $1,000 
• Lower Town Good Neighbours Food Bank (A Timely Christmas donation) $1,000 
• Alternative Learning Styles Early Years Challenge Fund $2,000 
• The Hospice At May Court Stretcher for patients in memory of Ken Miller's late wife 

Marlene $1,725 
• Centennial Public School Soccer nets for an inner-city school $1,000 
• Canadian Diabetes Association - 1 campership for Camp Banting $1,100 
• Bethany Hope Centre - Tents & Tables for a annual fund raising event $750 
• St Mary's Home - Sponsorship of prenatal room $500 
• Anya Muminovich - Musical training support for a gifted 15-year-old Kiwanis Music 

Festival Participant $500 

Personally, I would like to thank all the members of the committee for their hard work and expertise 
and, of course, Rita Harper and Mike Kruger. 
I would also like to express my gratitude to some non-committee members for their significant 
contribution to the success of the Y & C program. They are as follows: 

• Ken Birch - who raised over $700 in putting contests and donated it all to the 
Y & C committee. Ken was simply a lifesaver this year on more than one occasion. 

• Patrick McGarry and Hulse Playfair & McGarry - For answering the call of a bereaved 
mother on behalf of her late 12 year old son. 

• Steve Tanner and the Staples team for orchestrating the collection and delivery of school 
supplies for the needy kids at Connaught Public School, St. Joe's Women's Centre and The 
Centennial Public School. Ajob well done on our behalf by the folks at Staples! 

• Kathleen Holst, a staff member from MLL Computer Services, and Director Michael St 
Louis, for providing a computer and printer for a 13-year-old boy entering high school with 
a learning disability. 

Committee Members: 
Vice Chair Bill Harsh 
Vice Pres. Janet Dodds 
Director Neil McDonald 

Wayne Beaudoin 
Bruce Brooks 
Larry Haffner 

Respectfully submitted, 

Les Morin, Chair 

Ian Hendry 
Marcia Saipe 

Bob Littlemore 
John Norton 
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Suite 2000 

160 Elgin Street 

Ottawa ON K2P 2P8 

Canada 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 

Telephone (613) 212-KPMG (5764) 

Telefax (613) 212-2896 

www.kpmg.ca 

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. as at September 
30, 2003 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets (deficiency) and cash flows for the 
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Club's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

The Club derives revenue from membership fees, donations and various fundraising activities. the 
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of 
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Club and we were not able to 
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to such sources of revenue. deficiency of 
revenue over expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 
necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenue sources 
referred to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly. in all material respects. 
the financial position of the Club as at September 30, 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. As 
required by the Canada Corporations Act, we report that. in our opinion. these principles have been 
applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
Club taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1 is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion. is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 
November 7. 2003 

• ••• 
KPMG LLP. a Canadian limited liability partnership is the Canadian 
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Statement of Financial Position 

September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 21,922 $ 35,305 
Accounts receivable 31,217 44,074 

5,710 2,758 
58,849 82,137 

Receivable from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 1,139 

Capital assets (note 3) 10,714 14,855 

$ 70,702 $ 96,992 

Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficiency) 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 59,908 $ 80,996 
Deferred revenue 241 

59,908 81,237 

Payable to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation 401,152 

Payable to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 665 

Net assets (deficiency): 
Investment in capital assets 10,714 14,855 
Unrestricted deficiency 80 {400,917} 

10,794 (386,062) 
Economic dependence (note 2) 
Commitments (note 4) 

$ 70,702 $ 96,992 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

Director 

Director 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA 
Statement of Operations 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Revenue: 
Weekly raffle $ 5,233 $ 9,383 
Membership fees 55,249 56,461 
Recovery of administration costs: 

Duck race 57,763 45,000 
Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 2,000 2,000 

Video sales {note 7} 9,580 64,487 
129,825 177,331 

Expenses: 
EC&C District convention promotion 12,836 
Administration {schedule 1} 218,545 267,085 

218,545 279,921 

Contributions to Kiwanis of By!own 2,000 
218,545 281,921 

Excess of expenses over revenue before the undernoted (88,720) (104,590) 

loan from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation forgiven 485,576 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 396,856 $ (104,590) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Deficiency) 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 
Investment in 
capital assets Unrestricted Total Total 

Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year $ 14,855 $ (400,917) $ (386,062) $ (281,472) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 396,856 396,856 (104,590) 

Amortization of capital assets (4,141) 4,141 

Net assets (deficiency), end of year $ 10,714 $ 80 $ 10,794 $ (386,062) -
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 396.856 $ (104,590) 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 4.141 8,713 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 2,741 

Change in non-cash operating working capital: 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 12,857 (490) 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (2.952) 9,432 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

and accrued liabilities (21.088) 43.032 
Increase {decrease in deferred revenue {241} 241 

389,573 (40,921) 

Investments: 
Purchase of capital assets (17,921) 
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 3,415 
Advances from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation 84,424 87.232 
Loan from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation forgiven (485,576) 
Repayments to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical 

Foundation {4,964} 
(402,956) 67.762 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (13,383) 26,841 

Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of year 35,305 8,464 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 21,922 $ 35,305 

The Club considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30, 2003 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. (the "Club") is a non-profit service organization within the meaning 
of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is exempt from income taxes. The Club was chartered as a 
member of Kiwanis International in 1917. Its principal activities include providing services and 
financial support to various community organizations and projects. 

1 Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donation revenue which is 
recorded on a cash basis. Grants in excess of related costs for the period are reflected as 
deferred revenue. 

(b) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided on the declining balance basis 
using the following annual rates: 

Asset 

Software 
Computer 
Photocopier equipment 
Furniture 

(c) Donated services: 

Rate 

50%) 
30% 
30% 
20% 

The work of the Club is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Silice these 
services are not normally purchased by the Club and because of the difficulty of determining 
their fair value, donated services are not recognized in these financial statements. 

(d) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2003 

2. Economic dependence: 

3. 

The Club provides administrative services to the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation and is 
dependent on the Foundation to provide funds for continued operations. 

Capital assets: 

2003 2002 

Accumulated Net book Net book 
Cost amortization value value 

Software $ 3,327 $ 2,691 $ 636 $ 1,270 
Computer 11,837 6,491 5,346 7,637 
Photocopier equipment 4,637 4,459 178 254 
Fumiture 10,234 5,680 4,554 5,694 

$ 30,035 $ 19,321 $ 10,714 $ 14,855 

Cost and accumulated amortization at September 30, 2002 amounted to $30,035 and $15,180 
respectively. 

4. Commitments: 

The Club leases premises under an operating lease that expires in February 2007. Minimum annual 
rent payments for each of the next four years are approximately as follOWS: 2004 - $8,760; 2005 -
$10,020; 2006 - $11,320; and 2007 - $3,920. 

5. Related party transaction: 

Included in revenue is $2,000 (2002 - $2,000) received from Kiwanis · Club of Ottawa Medical 
Foundation and $57,763 (2002 - $45,000) received from the Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario 
to recover administration costs incurred in connection with funds raised by the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa Foundation. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30, 2003 

6. Financial instruments: 

The carrying values of the Club's cash, accounts receivable, receivable from the Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa Medical Foundation, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and payable to Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa Foundation approximate their fair values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the 
instruments. 

7. Video sales: 

Video sales have been reported on a net basis in the financial statements. Gross video revenues 
for the year amounted to $44,160 (2002 - $455,040). 

8. Weekly luncheons: 

Weekly luncheons have been reported on a net basis in schedule 1 to the financial statements. 
Gross luncheon revenues for the year amounted to $142,352 (2002 - $140,378). 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA INC. 
Schedule 1 - Administration Expense 

Year ended September 30, 2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Amortization of capital assets $ 4,141 $ 8,713 
Bookkeeping 5,176 19,696 
Bad debts 12,892 
Bank charges 3,426 2,502 
Conventions: 

International 4,091 4,709 
District 2,916 954 

Computer service and support 2,541 6,582 
Other 2,271 2,346 
Kiwanis supplies 1,548 1,459 
Liability insurance 9,373 7,954 
Lieutenant Governor's costs 3,852 3,996 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 2,741 
Kiwanis magazine subscription 3,426 3,465 
Membership committee 2,506 2,874 
Kiwanis membership dues: 

International 9,487 11,187 
District 7,826 8,235 

Miscellaneous 18,934 1,103 
Music committee 741 
Postage and courier charges 9,059 7,578 
President's honorarium 2,824 · 2,248 . 
Printing, stationery and office 18,659 20,672 
Professional fees 8,000 8,955 
Programme committee 3,579 6,911 
Public Relations committee 1,922 5,985 
Rent and municipal taxes 10,241 9,936 
Roster 4,136 5,076 
Salaries and benefits 93,655 113,798 
Weekly luncheons, net (note 8) (15,044) (16,223) 

$ 218,545 $ 267,085 
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KPMG LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Suite 2000 

160 Elgin Street 

Ottawa ON K2P 2P8 

Canada 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation 

Telephone (613) 212-KPMG (5764) 

Telefax (613) 212-2896 

www.kpmg.ca 

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation as at 
September 30, 2003 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

The Foundation derives revenue from donations and various fundraising activities, the completeness of 
which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of these revenues 
was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Foundation and we were not able to determine 
whether any adjustments might be necessary to such sources of revenue, excess of revenue over 
expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 
necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenue sources 
referred to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Foundation as at September 30, 2003 and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
Foundation taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1 and 2 is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 
November 10, 2003 

•••• 
KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership is the Canadian 
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Statement of Financial Position 

September 30, 2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash $ 137,656 $ 232,229 
Accounts receivable 56,483 60,883 
Inventories 3,000 6,300 

1,082 780 

198,221 300,192 

Investments (note 2) 66,700 66,700 

Receivable from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 3,776 3,855 

Receivable from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 401,152 

$ 268,697 $ 771,899 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 24,464 $ 38,116 
Deferred revenue 44,160 

24,464 82,276 

Net assets: 
Internally restricted for "Never Shake a Baby" project 

(note 3) 26,480 22,049 
Internally restricted for "Precious Minds" project (note 3) 41,301 
Restricted for endowment purposes (note 3) 5,000 5,000 
Unrestricted 212,753 621,273 

244,233 689,623 

$ 268,697 $ 771,899 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

Director 

Director 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Statement of Operations 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Revenue: 
Fundraising (schedule 1) $ 424,494 $ 412,397 
Other 11,690 9,732 

436,184 422,129 

Expenses: 
Fundraising (schedule 1) 116,067 139,286 
Bad debts 1,000 
Bank charges and interest 1,784 1,545 
Miscellaneous 817 1,337 

118,668 143,168 

Contributions {schedule 277,330 233,358 
395,998 376,526 

Excess of revenue over expenses before the undernoted 40,186 45,603 

Loan to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. forgiven (485,576) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (445,390) $ 45,603 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Internally Internally Externally 
restricted for restricted for restricted for 

"Never Shake a "Precious Minds" endowment 
Baby" project Project purposes Unrestricted Total Total 

(Schedule 1) (Schedule 1) 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 22,049 $ 41,301 $ 5,000 $ 621,273 $ 689,623 $ 644,020 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 4,431 6,227 (456,048) (445,390) 45,603 

Transfer net assets restricted for Precious 
Minds project to unrestricted (47,528) 47,528 

Net assets, end of year $ 26,480 $ $ 5,000 $ 212,753 $ 244,233 $ 689,623 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (445,390) $ 45,603 
Change in non-cash operating working capital: 

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 4,400 (21,531 ) 
Decrease (increase) in inventories 3,300 (6,300) 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (302) 19,321 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

and accrued liabilities (13,652) (4,176) 
Increase {decrease} in deferred revenue {44,160} 26,335 

(495,804) 59,252 

Investments: 
Repayments from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical 

Foundation 79 140 
Advances to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. (84,424) (87,232) 
Loan to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. forgiven 485,576 

401,231 (87,092) 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (94,573) (27,840) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 232,229 260,069 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 137,656 $ 232,229 

The Club considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30,2003 

The Kiwanis Foundation was established in 1967 as a registered charity and is exempt from 
income taxes. Its principal activities include providing social assistance to a variety of community 
organizations and projects. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Inventories: 

Inventories consist of video cassettes held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and . 
net realizable value. 

(b) Investments: 

Investments are carried at cost which approximates market value. 

(c) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donation revenue which is 
recorded on a cash basis. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net 
assets. Grants in excess of related costs for the period are reflected as deferred revenue. 

(d) Donated services: 

The work of the Foundation is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Since 
these services are not normally purchased by the Foundation and because of the difficulty of 
determining their fair value, donated services are not recognized in these financial statements. 

(e) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 

-



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended September 30,2003 

2. Investments: 

Investments consist of Ontario Savings Bonds with interest rates of 5.50% and 5.75% to 7%, 
maturing in June 2004 and June 2005 respectively. The market value of these bonds was $72,885 
at September 30,2003 (2002 - $72,545). 

These investments were purchased from proceeds from the Legacy for Life Fund. 

3. Restrictions on net assets: 

Of the net assets restricted for endowment purposes, $5,000 (2002 - $5,000) is subject to externally 
imposed restrictions, stipulating that the principal be maintained intact. Investment income is to be 
used by the Directors of the Club for Club welfare purposes. 

The net assets of the "Never Shake a Baby" video project, $26,553 (2002 - $22,049), are subject to 
internally imposed restrictions, stipulating that the amount be used to provide funding for future 
activity related to the project. 

Internally imposed restrictions on the net assets of the "Precious Minds" video project have been 
removed during the year. 

4. Related party transaction: 

During the year, approximately $NiI (2002 - $25,000) was paid to a director of the Club for project 
management services. 

5. Financial instruments: 

The carrying values of the Foundation's cash, accounts receivable, receivable from Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa Medical Foundation and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates their fair 
values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the instruments. 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Schedule 1 - Fundraising 

Year ended September 30, 2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

Proceeds Expenses 2003 2002 

Bed race $ 20,912 $ 7,438 $ 13,474 $ 
Bon appetit 37,747 6,789 30,958 36,083 
Dream of a Lifetime 31,000 34 30,966 28,962 
Duck Race 122,381 17,370 105,011 92,774 
Entertainment books 1,984 780 1,204 1,462 
Golf tournament 105,730 43,164 62,566 62,525 
Oktoberfest 5,087 
Partners in Caring 43,713 11,632 32,081 28,687 
Passing the torch 28,957 8,520 20,437 
Young Children Priority 

One: 
Precious Minds 5,137 (1,090) 6,227 5,303 
Never Shake a Baby 7,919 3,488 4,431 7,228 
Read-a-thon 19,014 17,942 1,072 
Hearing-screening 5,000 

$ 424,494 $ 116,067 $ 308,427 $ 273,111 



KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA FOUNDATION 
Schedule 2 - Contributions 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 2002 

Air cadets $ 13,749 $ 19,104 
Aktion Club 5,500 4,003 
Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario - Duck Race 114,109 100,232 
Circle K 3,777 1,117 
Community funding - Hands On 1,701 
Governor General Foot Guard Cadets 11,580 
Key Club 7,499 7,998 
Kiwanis Medical Foundation re: Bed Race 13,062 
Legacy for Life 5,608 (1,899) 
Music Festival 6,000 6,050 
Partners in caring 32,500 25,000 
Passing the Torch 21,341 10,000 
Reading is fundamental/Hearing-screening 2,000 3,812 
Senior Citizens 2,971 4,816 
Spiritual Aims and International Affairs 8,826 11,021 
Youth and Community Services 27,107 42,104 

$ 277,330 $ 233,358 



Financial Statements of 

THE KIWANIS CLUB OF 
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Year ended September 30,2003 



KPMG LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Suite 2000 

160 Elgin Street 

Ottawa ON K2P 2P8 

Canada 

Telephone (613) 212-KPMG (5764) 

Telefax (613) 212-2896 

w ww.kpmg.ca 

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE KIWA'NIS CLUB 
OF OTTAWA MEDICAL FOUNDATION 

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation 
as at September 30, 2003 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for 
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

In common with many charitable organizations, the Foundation derives revenue from donations, the 
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification . Accordingly, our verification of 
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Foundation and we were not 
able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to such sources of revenue, excess of 
revenue over expenses and net assets. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be 
necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of the revenues referred 
to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in a" material respects, the 
financial position of the Foundation as at September 30, 2003 and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Chartered Accountants 

Ottawa, Canada 
November 5, 2003 

•••• 
KPMG LLP,. a Canadian limited liability partnership is the Canadian 
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative . 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Position 

September 30, 2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Accrued interest receivable 

Investments (note 2) 

Receivable from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Payable to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation 

Payable to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. 

Net assets: 
Internally restricted 
Restricted for endowment purposes (note 3) 
Unrestricted 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board of Trustees: 

Director 

Director 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2003 

57,202 
3,192 

60,394 

681,811 

742,205 

2,100 

3,776 

1,139 

150,000 
5,000 

580,190 
735,190 

742,205 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2002 

64,377 
2,145 

66,522 

642,443 

665 

709,630 

1,605 

3,855 

150,000 
5,000 

549,170 
704,170 

709,630 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Earnings 

Year ended September 30,2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

Revenue: 
Donations 
Contribution from Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation re: 

Bed Race 
Interest 

Expenses: 
Medical research grants: 

University of Ottawa 
Ottawa Hospital Foundation 
Children's Hospital of Eastern Ontario 
University of Ottawa Heart Institute 

Administration fee - Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Incorporated 
Audit 
Miscellaneous 

Excess of revenue over expenses 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

2003 

9,031 

13,062 
38,176 
60,269 

13,500 
5,000 
5,000 
2,000 
2,700 
1,049 

29,249 

31,020 

2002 

$ 3,723 

35,845 
39,568 

6,000 
10,000 
5,000 
5,000 
2,000 
1,500 

87 
29,587 

$ 9,981 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended September 30,2003 

Net assets, beginning 
of year 

Excess of revenue 
over expenses 

Net assets, end of 
year 

$ 

$ 

Internally 
restricted 

150,000 

150,000 

Restricted for 
endowment 

purposes Unrestricted 

$ 5,000 $ 549,170 

31,020 

$ 5,000 $ 580,190 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

Total 
2003 

704,170 

31,020 

735,190 

$ 

$ 

Total 
2002 

694,189 

9,981 

704,170 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended September 30, 2003, with comparative figures for 2002 

2003 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 31,020 
Change in non-cash working 1,173 

32,193 

Investments: 
Purchase of investments (238,679) 
Proceeds on of investments 199,311 

(39,368) 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7,175) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 64,377 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 57,202 

2002 

$ 9,981 
4,056 

14,037 

(50,000) 
54,162 
4,162 

18,199 

46,178 

$ 64,377 

The Foundation considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with maturities of 
three months of less. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended September 30, 2003 

The Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Medical Foundation (the "Foundation") is a registered charitable 
organization. The Foundation was established in 1980 with a mandate to advance medical 
treatment and research and to provide assistance to other organizations with similar objects. The 
net assets of the Foundation must be maintained at a minimum of $150,000. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Investments: 

Investments are carried at cost which approximates fair market value. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis with the exception of donations which are recorded 
as revenue only when received. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases 
in net assets. 

(c) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during 
the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements, page 2 

Year ended September 30,2003 

2. Investments: 

2003 

Mortgage backed securities: 
$100,000,5%, maturing December 1, 2002 $ 
$25,000, 5%, maturing February 1, 2003 
$25,000, 8.125%, maturing July 1, 2003 
$20,000, 5.65%, maturing September 1, 2003 
$20,000, 5.65%, maturing September 1, 2003 
$27,896, 5.625%, maturing January 1, 2004 8,034 
$116,000,4.875%, maturing February 1, 2004 106,462 
$35,000, 7%, maturing March 1, 2004 2,089 
$15,000,7.25%, maturing July 1, 2004 1,850 
$38,000, 5.625%, maturing November 1, 2004 37,339 
$26,000, 5.55%, maturing June 1, 2005 24,372 
$25,000, 5.45%, maturing February 1, 2006 22,881 
$30,000, 7.625%, maturing June 1, 2006 27,915 
$25,000, 5.625%, maturing June 1, 2006 22,264 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing August 1, 2006 50,039 
$55,000, 5.4%, maturing March 1, 2008 49,950 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing August 1, 2009 46,565 
$50,000, 5.5%, maturing December 1, 2011 49,747 

449,507 

Province of Ontario bonds: 
4.62%, maturing May 6, 2004 25,000 
4.35%, maturing September 4, 2005 10,000 

Ontario Savings bonds: 
4.75%, maturing June 21,2003 
8.00%, maturing June 21, 2004 20,000 
5.50%, maturing June 21, 2004 25,000 
2.75%, maturing June 21, 2008 50,000 

Ontario Hydro bond: 
7.75%, maturing November 3, 2005 24,888 

Province of Manitoba bond: 
4.90%, maturing December 15, 2003 25,000 

Government of Canada bond: 
5.25%, maturing June 1, 2012 52,416 

$ 681,811 

Market value $ 693,924 

2002 

$ 96,500 
22,787 

2,081 
14,121 
23,571 
12,830 

108,465 
3,117 
2,320 

37,719 
25,031 

28,299 
22,850 
50,504 

47,360 

497,555 

25,000 

25,000 
20,000 
25,000 

24,888 

25,000 

$ 642,443 

$ 656,593 



THE KIWANIS CLUB OF OTTAWA MEDICAL 
FOUNDATION 

Notes to Financial Statements, page 3 

Year ended September 30, 2003 

3. Restrictions on net assets: 

The $5,000 of net assets restricted for endowment purposes is subject to externally imposed 
restrictions stipulating that this amount be maintained permanently. Investment income on the 
$5,000 is to be used by the Trustees of the Foundation for medical research. 

4. Financial instruments: 

The carrying value of the Foundations' cash, accrued interest receivable, accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities, payable to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Foundation and payable to Kiwanis Club of 
Ottawa Inc. approximates their fair value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the 
instruments. 

5. Related party transaction: 

Included in expenses is $2,000 (2002 - $2,000) paid to Kiwanis Club of Ottawa Inc. for 
administration charges. 
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A B C D E F G H I J K 

I<iwarus Club of Ottawa Inc 
Combined Statement of Revenue and Expense 

2003-04 Budget and 2002-03 Budget and Actual 
2003-04 2002-03 2002-03 
Budget Budget Actual 

COMMUNITY SERVICES ACCOUNT (C/S) 
Revenue 
Fund Raising Proceeds (Schedule 1) 461,980 A 485,000 393,494 a 
Other Fund Raising (schedule 1) 7,000 12,880 11,690 

Total Revenue 468,980 497,880 405,184 

Expenses 
Direct Fund Raising Expenses - (Schedule 1) 123,880 B 89,480 116,033 b 
Credit card / service charges 1,000 ° 1,784 

Total Expenses 124,880 89,480 117,817 

Net Revenue Before Contributions 344,100 408,400 287,367 

Contributions and Revenue Sharing Schedule 1) (256,890) E (430,695) (277,330) e 
Community Services Projects (Schedule 1) (9,000) F 17,000 (817) f 
Contributions / Community Svcs. Projects (265,890) (413,695) (278,147) 

COMMUNITY SERVICES ACCOUNT CIS 
Net Revenue (deficit) $78,210 (C/S) $9,220 NET REVENUE 

GENERAL ACCOUNT (G/ A) 2003-04 2002-03 2002-03 
Budget Budget Actual 

Revenue 
Video Sales (per KPMG) 9,580 
Membershio Dues 
- Active/Seniors 207 @$271.02 noGST 56,097 
- Honorary 7 (5 @ $25 I 2 @ $50) " 210 
- Initiation 20 @$233.64 " 4,673 the actual is not 

Total Membership Dues 60,980 57,780 55,249 broken down 
Luncheons 
- Weekly luncheon costs (-110 x $25.94 x 50 wks) (134,970) (127,308) (excludes GST) 
- Recovery (140 x $17.76/20 x $24.30) x 50 148,620 142,352 NOTE: Budget 

Net Weekly luncheons 13,650 3,000 15,044 includes 140 Active 
Recoverv : 20 Senior/guests 
Recovery Admin costs Duck Race 45,000 45,000 57,763 
Recovery for Dream of a Lifetime 15,000 31,000 30,966 
Recovery Admin costs Fundraisers 20% (NEW) 47,000 H 0 0 
Recovery Admin costs Medical Foundation 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Total Recovery 109,000 78,000 90,729 
Other: 
Raffle 5,000 5,000 5,233 
Total Revenue 188,630 144,280 175,835 includes Dream 

for Budget purpose 
Expense 
Administrative Expenses (Schedule 2 143,380 C 175,450 187,666 c 
Operations Committee Support (Schedule 2) 13,000 15,000 8,720 
Direct Kiwanis Expenses (Schedule 2 35,726 D 35,852 37,202 d 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 5,000 
Total Expenses 192,106 231,302 233,588 

GENERAL ACCOUNT G/A 
Net Revenue (deficit) (3,476) (G/A) (87,022) (57,754) NET DEFICIT 

I NET 1) ........... (Deficit) of COInbined Accounts 2003-04 2002-03 2002-03 
Budget Budget Actual 

* CIS (Fundraising/Community Service) 78,210 (C/S) (5,295) 9,220 -
GI A (Club Operations) (3,476) (G/A) (87,022) (57,754) -* NET DEFICIT 
Surplus (Deficit) for the year ***** 74,734 ***** (92,317) ( (48,534) ACC( 

Surplus (Deficit), Beginning 255,027 303,561 

Surplus (Deficit), End 329,761 211,244 255,027 

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL 
2003-04 2002-03 2002-03 

cis 
CO/A 

BUDGET 2003-04 FINAL 2002-03 Jan 11 1/12/2004 



A B C D E F G H I J K L M N 0 P Q R S T 

72 Schedule 1 Fundraising Activities 
73 2003-04 BUDGET and 2002-03 Actuals (based on preliminary figures rom KPMG) 
74 --------------------------------------2003-04 Budget----------------------------------------- I ------------------------2002-03 Actuals (Unaudited)--------------------------
75 Gross 20% Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net I Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net 
76 Revenue Admin Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue I Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue 
77 Major Fund Raising Activities and 20% I 
78 Bed Race 36,000 7,200 10,600 18,200 (10,000) Med Found 8,200 I 20,912 7,438 13,474 (13,062) KMF 412 
79 Bon Appetit - Silent Auction 45,000 9,000 7,000 29,000 29,000 I 37,747 6,789 30,958 30,958 
80 Duck Race 20,000 x $10 200,000 10,000 190,000 (175,000) CHEO 15,000 I 122,381 17,370 105,011 (114,109) (9,098) 
81 Entertainment Books (60) 1,980 1,080 900 900 I 1,984 780 1,204 1,204 
82 Golf Tournament 90,000 18,000 35,000 37,000 37,000 I 105,730 43,164 62,566 62,566 
83 Ottawa Senators Partners In Caring 32,000 6,400 11,200 14,400 (20,000) YMCA / YCPO /&nald (5,600) I 43,713 11,632 32,081 (32,500) BO}JIYCPO (419) 
84 Passing The Torch 0 0 I 28,957 8,520 20,437 (21,341) (904) 
85 NEW Fundraiser (Travel Show) 32,000 6,400 9,000 16,600 16600 I 
86 Subtotal 436980 47,000 83,880 306100 (205,000) 101,100 I 361,424 95,693 265,731 (181,012) 84,719 
87 H I a NOTE: Dream of a Lifetime moved to G/ A page 1 
88 Other Fund Raising I 
89 Donations 3,000 3,000 3,000 I 4,305 4,305 Bootstraf Symposium 4,305 
90 Other Income (Interest, etc) 4000 4,000 4000 I 7,385 7385 7385 
91 Subtotal 7,000 ° 7,000 0 7,000 I 11,690 0 11,690 0 11,690 

92 Fund Raising TOTAL 443,980 83,880 313,100 (205,000) 108,100 I 373,114 95,693 277,421 (181,012) 96,409 

93 A B I b 
94 EXPENSE Revenue Sharing/ I Revenue Sharing/ 
95 Community Service Projects Contributions I Contributions 
96 Cadets - Air 0 (2,240) (2,240) I 325 325 (13,749) (13,424) 
97 Cadets - GG FG 0 (7,500) (7,500) I 1,910 1,910 (11,580) (9,670) 
98 Circle K 0 (3,500) (3,500) I ° (3,777) (3,777) 
99 Key Club 0 (4,000) (4,000) I 0 (7,499) (7,499) 
100 Legacy Fund 0 0 I 0 (5,608) (5,608) 
101 Misc / Board Contingency 1,000 (1,000) (1,000) I 921 (921) (921) 
102 Music Festival 0 (1,650) (1,650) I 0 (6,000) (6,000) 
103 Senior Citizens/Hands-On 0 (3,500) (3,500) I ° (4,672) (4,672) 
104 Spiritual Aims / AKtion Club $5,500 0 (9,500) (9,500) I 0 (14,326) (14,326) 
105 Ways & Means 0 0 I 0 0 
106 YCPO - SBS videos 0 0 I 7,919 3,488 4,431 4,431 
107 YCPO - Precious Minds videos 0 0 I 5,137 (1,090) 6,227 6,227 
108 YCPO - RIF and other initiatives 8,000 (8,000) (8,000) I 0 (2,000) (2,000) 
109 YCPO - ReadaThon 25,000 40,000 (15,000) (15,000) I 19,014 17,942 1,072 1,072 
110 Youth & Community Services 0 (20,000) (20,000) I 786 786 (27107) (26321) 
111 Community Service Proj TOTAL 25,000 49000 (24,000) (51,890) (75890) I 35,091 21,261 13 830 (96 318) (82488) 
"ilL J:< I t 

113 Net Proceeds Available (256,890) E 32,210 I (277,3302 e 13,921 
114 Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net I Gross Direct Total after Revenue Sharing/ Net 
115 Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue I Revenue Expenses Expenses Contributions Revenue 

BUDGET 2003-04 FINAL 2002-03 Jan 10 1/12/2004 


